
 

Agenda No. 2017–06 March 20, 2017 Page 1 of 3 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA NO. 2017–06 

REGULAR MEETING MARCH 20, 2017 
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

7:00 P.M. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
 
2. INVOCATION 
 
 
3. FLAG SALUTATION 
 
 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS, oral communications to Council on any item not up for 

Public Hearing.  Testimony is limited to five minutes.  Any person wishing to 
speak needs to complete the register located in the hallway.  Normal standards 
of decorum and courtesy should be observed by all speakers.  Remarks should 
be directed to the City Council as a body rather than to any particular Council 
Member or member of the staff.  In consideration of others, kindly silence all cell 
phones and electronic devices.  

 
 
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items indicated by an asterisk (*).  
Consent Agenda items are not considered separately unless a Council Member 
so requests.  In the event of such a request, the item is returned to the General 
Agenda.   

 
 
6. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
 *a) Regular Meeting Minutes of January 23, 2017 
 
 
7. SPECIAL ORDERS 
 

 a) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, will hear 
interested citizens concerned with the following Liquor License 
Applications for Renewal.  Public Testimony will be taken and limited to 
five minutes.   

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 1 of 126



 

Agenda No. 2017–06 March 20, 2017 Page 2 of 3 

 
Lic # DBA License Type Licensee Premises Address 

3050 Gambardella’s Pasta Bella Restaurant/ 
Eating Place Gambardella’s II, Inc. No Premises 

3965 K & L Beverage Company Wholesale – 
General 

K & L Beverage Company, 
LLC 945 Elizabeth Street 

1966 Loyal Order of Moose #1392 Club Fairbanks Lodge #1392 98 10th Avenue 

 
 b) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, will hear 

interested citizens concerned with the following application for a new 
Marijuana Cultivation Facility License.  Public Testimony will be taken and 
limited to five minutes.   

 
Type: Marijuana Cultivation Facility, License #11051 
DBA: Northlink, LLC 
Licensee/Applicant: Northlink, LLC 
Physical Location: 1550 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, Alaska 

 
 
8. MAYOR'S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 

 a) Resolution No. 4768 – A Resolution Adopting a City of Fairbanks Diversity 
Action Plan.  Introduced by Mayor Matherly.  POSTPONED from the 
Regular Meeting of February 27, 2017. 

 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

*a) Resolution No. 4782 – A Resolution Authorizing the City of Fairbanks to 
Accept Funds from the AMLJIA Ballistic Vest Reimbursement Program.  
Introduced by Mayor Matherly.   

 
 b) Resolution No. 4783 – A Resolution Authorizing Execution of a 

Maintenance Agreement for 3rd Street in Exchange for Local Matching 
Funds for the Minnie Street Upgrade Project.  Introduced by Mayor 
Matherly.   

 
 c) Resolution No. 4784 – A Resolution Authorizing Matching Funds and 

Execution of a Maintenance Agreement for the Minnie Street Upgrade 
Project.  Introduced by Mayor Matherly. 

 
*d) Resolution No. 4785 – A Resolution in Support of HB 127, an Act Relating 

to Permanent Fund Dividends for an Individual Whose Conviction Has 
Been Vacated, Reversed, or Dismissed.  Introduced by Council Member 
Therrien. 

 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 2 of 126



 

Agenda No. 2017–06 March 20, 2017 Page 3 of 3 

*e) Ordinance No. 6043 – An Ordinance to Amend Fairbanks General Code 
Chapter 2, Article VIII, Financial Disclosure.  Introduced by Mayor 
Matherly.   

 
 
11. DISCUSSION ITEMS (INFORMATION AND REPORT)  
 

 a) Committee Reports 
 
 
12. COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 

 a) Memo Approving Workers’ Compensation Settlement (W. Cummings) 
 
*b) Memo Regarding Lead Spokesperson for Labor Negotiations 
 
*c) Fairbanks Diversity Council Meeting Minutes of January 10, 2017 

 
 
13. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
 
14. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
 
15. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT  

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 3 of 126



 
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES, JANUARY 23, 2017 
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 
 

The City Council convened at 7:00 p.m. on the above date, following a 6:00 p.m. Work Session 
for the Permanent Fund Annual Report, to conduct a Regular Meeting of the Fairbanks City 
Council at the City Council Chambers, 800 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, Alaska, with Mayor Jim 
Matherly presiding and with the following Council Members in attendance: 
 
Council Members Present: Joy Huntington, Seat A 

June Rogers, Seat B 
Valerie Therrien, Seat C 
Jerry Norum, Seat D 
Jerry Cleworth, Seat E 
David Pruhs, Seat F 
 

Absent: None 
 

Also Present: Clem Clooten, Building Official 
Paul Ewers, City Attorney 
D. Danyielle Snider, City Clerk 
Mike Meeks, Chief of Staff 
Stephanie Johnson, Dispatch Center Manager 
Carmen Randle, Chief Financial Officer 
Angela Foster-Snow, HR Director 
Jim Styers, Fire Chief 
Kyle Green, Deputy Fire Marshal 
Andrew Ackerman, Environmental Manager 
JB Brainerd, Deputy City Attorney 
 

INVOCATION 
 
The Invocation was given by City Clerk Danyielle Snider. 
 
FLAG SALUTATION 
 
Mayor Matherly led the Flag Salutation. 
 
CITIZEN’S COMMENTS 
 
Brittany Smart, 809 Pioneer Way, Fairbanks – Ms. Smart stated that the Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) has moved forward with the air quality re-designation from moderate 
to serious.  She stated that Mayor Karl Kassel met with the EPA to discuss the requirements 
because some of the regulations have nothing to do with Fairbanks.   
 
Frank Turney, 329 6th Avenue, Fairbanks – Mr. Turney stated he attended Fire Chief Warren 
Cummings’ building dedication.  He spoke to the need for the City to maintain fire hydrants 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 4 of 126



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 23, 2017 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 16 

throughout the community for safety reasons.  Mr. Turney stated he was concerned about the 
health, welfare and safety of one of the Council Members. 
 
Mr. Norum asked Mr. Turney which Council Member he was concerns about.  Mr. Turney 
stated he is concerned about Mr. Norum; he stated he rode in a car with him and that his driving 
is a danger to the community.    
 
Victor Buberge, P.O. Box 58192, Fairbanks – Mr. Buberge spoke to the importance of fire 
hydrant maintenance around the City.  He spoke to visibility issues at intersections throughout 
the City.  He asked why there were red and green circles sprayed on the roads and wondered 
whether it was for marking potholes.  He spoke to the need for public restrooms in the City.  
 
Mr. Norum thanked Mr. Turney and Mr. Buberge for their testimony because they offer 
solutions to issues; he gave Mr. Buberge the hotline for pothole reporting.  Mr. Buberge replied 
that he has tried calling the hotline, and it did no good.     
 
Kelvin Lee, 253 Romans Way, Fairbanks – Mr. Lee asked for volunteers to help with the Point 
in Time survey event that would take place on January 25, 2017 at the JP Jones Community 
Center from 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. 
 
Ms. Rogers asked Mr. Lee to speak to the fees charged at the homeless housing complex.  Mr. 
Lee stated the Homeless Coalition created a permanent supportive housing project.  He stated the 
old Ranch Motel is now a hospitality house where low-income and homeless individuals can rent 
rooms.  Mr. Lee stated that a regular room is $650.00 a month and an efficiency is $750.00.  He 
stated that people could use their vouchers to pay the rent.   
 
Ms. Huntington asked whether residents could cook a meal on-site at the hotel.  Mr. Lee 
explained that there is a community kitchen for residents to use.   
 
Kara Carlson, 782 7th Avenue, Fairbanks – Ms. Carlson stated that there is a Point in Time 
survey event happening at the Stone Soup Café on January 25, 2017 from 7:00 a.m. until 10:00 
a.m.  She stated she is looking for volunteers.   
 
Darlene Herbert, 906 Woodlawn Road, Fairbanks – Ms. Herbert stated she did not think that the 
rooms at the old Ranch Motel could be made into an efficiency.  She stated she is happy that Mr. 
Lee is trying to help out poor people but what she hears on the streets is that it is not a nice place.  
Ms. Herbert stated that after Public Works removed the snow on Lathrop Street she cracked the 
plastic on the bottom of her car when pulling out of her driveway.  She spoke against the State 
giving the wives of fallen officers money because the State is broke.   
 
Mayor Matherly asked Ms. Herbert if she contacted Public Works about shaving down the 
bump in her driveway.  Ms. Herbert replied that she did not report it because she did not think 
they would come and fix it.  Mayor Matherly stated he would ask Public Works to shave down 
her driveway.   
 
Mr. Norum commended Public Works for working around the clock in cold weather in an effort 
to remove snow.  He asked Ms. Herbert who owns the snow, and Ms. Herbert replied that the 
law says it is her snow if it is in her driveway.   

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 5 of 126



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 23, 2017 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 16 

 
Hearing no more requests for public comment, Mayor Matherly declared Public Testimony 
closed. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Mr. Norum, seconded by Ms. Huntington, moved to APPROVE the Agenda and Consent 
Agenda. 
 
Mr. Cleworth pulled Resolution No. 4779 from the Consent Agenda.   
 

Mayor Matherly called for objection and, hearing none, so 
ORDERED. 

 
City Clerk Snider read the Consent Agenda, as Amended, into the record. 
 
APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
a) Regular Meeting Minutes of November 7, 2016. 
 

APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 
b) Regular Meeting Minutes of November 21, 2016. 
 
  APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 
SPECIAL ORDERS 
 
a) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, heard interested 

citizens concerned with the following Liquor License Applications for Renewal: 
  

Lic. # DBA License Type Licensee Premises Address 
328 Drop In Lounge Beverage Dispensary N & P Enterprises, LLC 1420 S. Cushman St. 

4880 Friar Tuck’s Hoagie 
House 

Restaurant/Eating 
Place Joshua & Stafford Roach 427 Merhar Ave., #2 

2982 Carlson Community 
Center Recreational Site SMG of Alaska, Inc. 2010 Second Ave. 

556 International Hotel & 
Bar Beverage Dispensary Dakota Ventures, Inc. 122 N. Turner St. 

725 Midnite Mine Beverage Dispensary Borealis Investments, 
Inc. 308 Wendell Ave. 

2124 McCoy’s on 28th Beverage Dispensary 636, LLC 636 28th Ave. (upstairs) 

 
Mr. Cleworth, seconded by Mr. Pruhs, moved to WAIVE PROTEST on the first five liquor 
licenses listed.   
 
Darlene Herbert, 906 Woodlawn Road, Fairbanks – Ms. Herbert spoke to the question she asked 
at the last Council Meeting relating to a bar owner having a high number of police calls to their 
business location.  She stated that needs to be considered prior to approval.   
 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 6 of 126



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 23, 2017 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 16 

Ms. Therrien asked Ms. Herbert if she was aware that the application for Hi-Jinx had been 
rescinded.  Ms. Herbert stated she did not know that.   
 
Ms. Huntington stated that due to Ms. Herbert’s concerns, the Council will now take a much 
closer look at liquor license transfers.    
 
Hearing no more requests for public comment, Mayor Matherly declared Public Testimony 
closed. 
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO WAIVE PROTEST ON THE 
FIRST FIVE LIQUOR LICENSES LISTED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
  YEAS:  Cleworth, Pruhs, Rogers, Huntington, Norum, Therrien 
  NAYS: None 
  Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION CARRIED.   
 
Mr. Cleworth, seconded by Ms. Huntington, moved to PROTEST the renewal of the McCoy’s 
liquor license until it is in compliance with the Fire Department.   
 
Randall Kelsch, 3254 Riverview Drive, Fairbanks – Mr. Kelsch stated he has been the owner of 
the McCoy’s property for 17 years.  He spoke to the conflict he has had with the Fire Marshal 
relating to a sprinkler requirement inside a walk-in cooler.  He stated it is very unlikely that a fire 
would start inside the cooler, and that a sprinkler system would be expensive to install.  Mr. 
Kelsch stated that the Fire Department signed off on building inspections at the location in the 
early 1980’s.  He stated that a waiver should be granted because it is not a hazardous property 
and that if there was anything dangerous on the property, he would address it.  He stated that he 
is more worried about being robbed than his cooler catching on fire.   
 
Ms. Rogers asked Mr. Kelsch what percentage of his building is sprinklered and how big his 
walk in cooler is.  Mr. Kelsch replied that 90% of his building is sprinklered and that the cooler 
is 10’ x 10’.   
 
Ms. Therrien stated that the Fire Department reported the building had not been signed off on in 
1977, and she asked Mr. Kelsch if he had information to prove otherwise.  Mr. Kelsch read aloud 
historic records regarding an old fire inspection that was done on the property and stated that 
there is some speculation that the inspector at the time made an incorrect determination.  He 
stated, however, that the inspections were passed.  Ms. Therrien asked how much it would cost 
to put sprinklers inside the cooler, and Mr. Kelsch replied that he would guess that it would cost 
about $10,000.  He spoke against the City protesting his liquor license because he has not 
violated Title 4, which governs liquor licenses.  He stated that the issue is a building code issue. 
 
Mr. Cleworth stated that there are three violations reported by the Fire Department, the first 
being deficient components of the sprinkler system that require repair and reporting to an 
approved monitoring agency.  Mr. Kelsch stated he would address the issue if it has not been 
addressed already.  Mr. Cleworth stated the second issue cited by the Fire Department is that the 
sprinkler system needs to be extended to the new additions, the coolers and awnings.  Mr. Kelsch 
stated that he built the awning over the outside stairwell to prevent ice from forming on the stairs 
after an employee fell down the stairs.  He stated that he solved the sprinkler compliance issue 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 7 of 126



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 23, 2017 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 16 

for the awning by removing it.  Mr. Cleworth stated the third violation is deficient components 
in the sprinkler system.  He asked Mr. Kelsch to clarify whether his problem with the Fire 
Department’s report was in regard to installing a sprinkler system in the freezer, cooler and 
awning.  Mr. Kelsch replied that he would not have a problem addressing the other issues 
presented by the Fire Department, but that he felt adding a sprinkler system to the areas Mr. 
Cleworth referenced was over the top.  Mr. Kelsch stated he does not mind doing what is 
reasonable and right but he does not want to be burdened with things that are unreasonable and 
of no value. 
 
Mr. Pruhs asked if Mr. McCoy was his business partner; Mr. Kelsch replied affirmatively.  Mr. 
Pruhs asked Mr. McCoy if he would be willing to answer some questions; he also inquired 
about Mr. McCoy’s profession.   
 
John McCoy, 666 11th Avenue, Fairbanks – Mr. McCoy stated that he is the Mechanical 
Inspector for the State of Alaska.  Mr. Pruhs asked Mr. McCoy if he thought there was a safety 
risk if the freezer and cooler were sprinklered.  Mr. McCoy stated that he does not believe it 
poses a problem given the nature of the business.  He stated that he has done research to try to 
find instances of coolers catching fire, and he was unable to find any.   
 
Ms. Therrien asked Mr. McCoy whether the fire alarm system reports to an approved 
monitoring agency.  Mr. McCoy replied that King Fire Protection was working on the issue and 
that he would verify that it was done.   
 
Hearing no more requests for public comment, Mayor Matherly declared Public Testimony 
closed. 
 
Mr. Cleworth requested a Staff Report from Deputy Fire Marshal Kyle Green; he asked him to 
address the need for a sprinkler system in the coolers.  Mr. Green stated the issue has been 
ongoing since 2000 when an addition was built onto the building.  He stated that former Fire 
Marshal Ernie Misewicz originally documented that the addition did not meet codes and 
standards.  Mr. Green spoke to the history of the building file and to the many notes that are 
documented there.  He stated that the building was supposed to be built according to fire resistant 
construction standards or have a sprinkler system throughout; he stated that neither is the case.    
 
Mr. Cleworth asked whether there is an issue with the boiler room.  Mr. Green stated that there 
are not sprinklers in the boiler room and that the alternate system of fire suppressant in the boiler 
room is not acceptable by fire safety standards.   
 
Ms. Therrien asked Mr. Green to address what part of the sprinkler system has deficient 
components that need to be replaced.  Mr. Green spoke to the issues that must be addressed in 
order for the Fire Department to lift their protest.   
 
Ms. Huntington stated the memo did not address the lack of sprinklers in the boiler room and 
asked Mr. Green why.  Mr. Green stated he did not get too detailed in the memo, but that it was 
just a general overview.  He stated that the full report is nine pages long and gets into technical 
aspects of the code.   
 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 8 of 126



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 23, 2017 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 6 of 16 

Ms. Therrien asked Mr. Green if the owner had addressed the issues as of their last meeting; 
Mr. Green responded by saying they had not addressed all items.   
 
Mr. Cleworth, seconded by Ms. Therrien, moved to AMEND the motion to protest until items 
(a) and (c) referenced in the Fire Department memo have been taken care of [item (a) reads, 
“Fire alarm system has deficient components that require repair or replacement, does not monitor 
the status of the sprinkler system, and is required to report to an approved monitoring agency”; 
item (c) reads, “Sprinkler system has deficient components, other than previously mentioned, 
that require repair or replacement”]: 
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO AMEND THE MOTION TO 
PROTEST UNTIL ITEMS (a) AND (c) REFERENCED IN THE FIRE DEPARTMENT MEMO 
HAVE BEEN TAKEN CARE OF AS FOLLOWS:   
   

YEAS:  Therrien, Rogers, Pruhs, Norum Huntington, Cleworth 
  NAYS: None 
  Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION CARRIED.  
 
Ms. Therrien stated she is not comfortable with allowing the boiler room to remain without a 
sprinkler system but that she does not see a need for it in the coolers.   
 
Mr. Norum asked if the current fire suppression system could be raised higher to make it more 
like a sprinkler system.  Mr. Green replied that the current fire suppression system does not have 
the same effect as a sprinkler system.   
 
Mr. Cleworth stated he agrees that the boiler room needs to have a sprinkler system. 
 
Ms. Rogers stated she is concerned with the boiler room not being connected to the sprinkler 
system but that she is not concerned with the coolers.  She stated she has concerns about the 
awning being removed because it puts the employees in a dangerous situation.  She stated that 
there is no need for a sprinkler system to be connected to the awning.   
 
Ms. Therrien, seconded by Mr. Norum, moved to AMEND the motion to protest by specifying 
that the boiler room must be sprinklered within one year. 
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO AMEND THE MOTION TO 
PROTEST BY SPECIFYING THAT THE BOILER ROOM MUST BE SPRINKLERED 
WITHIN ONE YEAR AS FOLLOWS: 
 
  YEAS:  Norum, Cleworth, Rogers, Huntington, Therrien 
  NAYS: Pruhs 
  Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION CARRIED.  
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO PROTEST THE LIQUOR 
LICENSE RENEWAL UNTIL ITEMS (a) AND (c) REFERENCED IN THE FIRE 
DEPARTMENT MEMO HAVE BEEN TAKEN CARE OF AND SPECIFYING THAT THE 
BOILER ROOM MUST BE SPRINKLERED WITHIN ONE YEAR AS FOLLOWS: 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 9 of 126



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 23, 2017 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 7 of 16 

  YEAS:  Pruhs, Therrien, Huntington, Cleworth, Norum, Rogers 
  NAYS: None 
  Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION CARRIED.  
 
b) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, heard interested 

citizens concerned with the following Liquor License Application for Transfer of 
Ownership:   

 
  Type:  Beverage Dispensary, License #270 
  To:  Lavelle’s Taphouse / Lavelle’s Taphouse, LLC 
    414 2nd Avenue, Fairbanks, Alaska 
  From:  Lavelle’s Taphouse / Arlette Eagle-Lavelle 
    414 2nd Avenue, Fairbanks, Alaska 
 
Ms. Therrien, seconded by Mr. Pruhs, moved to WAIVE PROTEST on the Liquor License 
Application for Transfer of Ownership.   
 
Mayor Matherly called for Public Testimony and, hearing none, declared Public Testimony 
closed. 
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO WAIVE PROTEST ON THE 
LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP AS FOLLOWS: 
 
  YEAS:  Rogers, Norum, Therrien, Pruhs, Cleworth, Huntington 
  NAYS: None 
  Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION CARRIED.   
 
c) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, heard interested 

citizens concerned with the following application for a new Marijuana Cultivation 
Facility License:   

 
Type:   Marijuana Cultivation Facility, License #10958 
DBA:   Green Life Supply, LLC 
Licensee/Applicant: Green Life Supply, LLC 
Physical Location: 511 30th Avenue, Fairbanks, Alaska 

 
Mr. Pruhs, seconded by Ms. Huntington, moved to WAIVE PROTEST on the Marijuana 
Cultivation Facility License.  
 
Frank Turney, 6th Avenue, Fairbanks – Mr. Turney spoke in favor of the cultivation license for 
Green Life Supply.  He spoke to how racist the word “marijuana” is and stated that people 
should call it cannabis.   
 
Christine Nelson, 1526 Farmers Loop Road, Fairbanks – Ms. Nelson stated she is the 
Community Planning Director for the Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) and that she is in 
attendance to answer any questions Council Members may have.  She stated the applicant has 
met all the Borough zoning regulations for conditional use of the facility.   
 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 10 of 126



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 23, 2017 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 8 of 16 

Ms. Huntington asked Ms. Nelson to recap the public process for conditional use of the facility.  
Ms. Nelson stated the buffer zone for sensitive use is 100 feet and that there are two sensitive 
uses to the south of the facility, but they are 400 feet away.   
 
Mr. Cleworth asked Ms. Nelson if the Borough sent out letters to property owners in the area.  
Ms. Nelson stated that everyone within 1000 feet of the facility received a letter and that she did 
not hear any concerns.   
 
Mr. Pruhs asked Ms. Nelson if she received a report from the Building Department on the 
facility.  Ms. Nelson stated that the Borough does not require a report unless they know that there 
are problems with the facility.    
 
Charles Lincoln, 612 30th Avenue, Fairbanks – Mr. Lincoln stated that he is the owner of 
Advance Printing which is two doors down from the cultivation facility.  He shared his concern 
about the odor that might emanate from the facility.  
 
Ms. Huntington asked Mr. Lincoln if he had spoken to his soon-to-be neighbor; Mr. Lincoln 
stated he met him at a planning and zoning meeting.   
 
Ms. Rogers asked how far away the facility is from his office, and Mr. Lincoln stated it is about 
500 feet away.   
 
Ms. Therrien stated that according to the conditional use agreement, the owner will have to 
regulate the air with fans.  Mr. Lincoln stated he is not protesting the license, but is only sharing 
his concern for the record.  
 
Nathan Davis, 231 Slater Drive, Fairbanks – Mr. Davis stated he is the owner of Green Life 
Supply and that can answer questions from Council Members.   
 
Mr. Cleworth asked Mr. Davis if the location has been issued a Certificate of Occupancy.  Mr. 
Davis replied that the Building Department has approved all his plans but that he has not yet 
received the Certificate of Occupancy.   
 
Hearing no more requests for public comment, Mayor Matherly declared Public Testimony 
closed. 
 
Mayor Matherly asked Building Official Clem Clooten to come forward for a Staff Report.  Mr. 
Clooten stated the Building Department has not issued a Certificate of Occupancy yet because 
the project is still under construction.   
 
Mr. Pruhs asked Mr. Clooten what will be used to regulate the odor coming from the facility; 
Mr. Clooten stated he did not know as the issue is uncharted territory.  
 
Ms. Nelson stated that if neighbors complain about the odor, the Borough would ask the owner 
to change their air filter.  
 
Mr. Norum asked if high efficiency particulate air (HEPA) filters had been considered; Ms. 
Nelson replied that the Borough is not regulating the types of filters used.   

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 11 of 126



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 23, 2017 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 9 of 16 

 
Mr. Pruhs, with the concurrence of the Second, WITHDREW the motion to WAIVE PROTEST 
on the Marijuana Cultivation Facility License.   
 
Mr. Pruhs, seconded by Ms. Huntington, moved to PROTEST the Marijuana Cultivation 
Facility License until a Certificate of Occupancy is issued by the Building Department.   
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO PROTEST THE MARIJUANA 
CULTIVATION FACILITY LICENSE UNTIL A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY IS 
ISSUED BY THE BUILDING DEPARTMENT AS FOLLOWS: 
 
  YEAS:  Cleworth, Pruhs, Rogers, Huntington, Norum, Therrien 
  NAYS: None 
  Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION CARRIED.   
 
MAYOR’S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
Mayor Matherly shared the City and State’s pothole hotlines, and he commended Public Works 
for their work on snow removal.  He thanked Public Works Director Jeff Jacobson for his efforts 
in keeping the City streets clear of snow.  He stated the Police Department has hired more 
officers, including one lateral hire.   
 
Ms. Therrien asked Mayor Matherly when the Council would receive the full report of the 
investigation into former Police Chief Randall Aragon.  Mayor Matherly stated he would work 
with the City Attorney and have it released soon; he stated he had not yet read the full report.  
Ms. Therrien stated she should not have to wait for the Mayor to review it before she sees it.   
 
Mr. Norum stated the City is at risk financially because of the Aragon scandal. 
 
Mayor Matherly stated he is reviewing the report with the Attorney and it will be released soon.   
 
Mr. Cleworth asked City Attorney Paul Ewers if he thought Aragon’s attorney would ask that 
the full report not be released to the public.  Mr. Ewers stated there are two public records 
requests for the full report, but it needs to be reviewed and possibly redacted before it is released.   
 
Ms. Therrien requested an Executive Session on the Randall Aragon report.   
 
Mr. Cleworth requested a five minute recess before moving on.  No members objected, and 
Mayor Matherly called for a brief recess.   
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
a) Liquor License Application for Transfer of Ownership and Name Change.  POSTPONED 

from the Regular Meeting of January 9, 2017.  Public Hearing was held on January 9, 
2017. 

 
  Type:  Beverage Dispensary, License #2847 
  To:  Hi-Jinx / ENLAK, LLC 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 12 of 126



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 23, 2017 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 10 of 16 

    1351 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, Alaska 
  From:  Bojangles / Scruff-N-Pork’s, Inc. 
    1351 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, Alaska 
 

NOTE:  This application was rescinded per the Alcohol & Marijuana Control Office.  No 
action by the City Council was necessary.   

 
b) Resolution No. 4768 – A Resolution Adopting a City of Fairbanks Diversity Action Plan.  

Introduced by Mayor Matherly.  POSTPONED from the Regular Meeting of November 
7, 2016.   

 
NOTE:  The motion to APPROVE was made by Mr. Norum and seconded by Ms. 
Rogers at the Regular Meeting of November 7, 2016. 

 
Mr. Cleworth asked Fairbanks Diversity Council (FDC) members to come forward; he asked 
what the definition of diversity means to the FDC.   
 
Jo Ann Borges, 1130 Vicki Lane, North Pole – Ms. Borges stated that diversity means the 
community as a whole, regardless of sexual orientation, color, religion, age, or social status.  
 
Mr. Cleworth suggested changes to the Diversity Action Plan (DAP).  He stated that FDC 
members should not be a part of the hiring process for the Chief of Staff and the Mayor’s 
Communications Director because those positions are appointed by the Mayor. 
 
Kelvin Lee, 253 Romans Way, Fairbanks – Mr. Lee stated the FDC had already addressed that 
issue, and they only wish to be involved with the hiring of key public safety positions.   
 
Mr. Cleworth asked HR Director Angela Foster-Snow to come forward.   
 
Mayor Matherly read aloud the Mission Statement of the Diversity Council. 
 
Mr. Cleworth asked Ms. Foster-Snow what kind of diversity training the City would be 
providing according to the DAP.  Ms. Foster-Snow stated the City is taking suggestions from the 
Diversity Council to come up with diversity awareness training that would be respectful to all 
employees.  Ms. Foster-Snow stated the training would be given to all City employees, but that 
they have not decided on a specific training yet.  Mr. Cleworth stated that temporary hires 
should not have to participate in the training and that the training should not take away from 
important job duties.  Ms. Foster-Snow stated that all full-time employees should take the 
training.  She added that the training would be part of an employee’s orientation, and it would 
not take hours and hours to complete.   
 
Ms. Rogers spoke to Mr. Cleworth’s comment regarding training for temporary hires.  She 
stated that if people hear that they will be working with an agency that respects its employees 
and promotes diversity, they may find the job more attractive.   
 
Mr. Norum stated the community can be improved by increasing and embracing diversity.   
 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 13 of 126



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 23, 2017 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 11 of 16 

Mr. Pruhs thanked the FDC members for attending the Council meeting and for all of their hard 
work on the DAP.   
 
Ms. Huntington asked if Department Heads had the opportunity to weigh in on the Plan.  
Mayor Matherly confirmed that they did.  Ms. Huntington stated that it may be helpful to 
include members of the FDC in the hiring of the Chief of Staff and Communications Director 
She stated that if they had been involved with a recent hiring process, it might have saved a lot of 
public controversy over a selection made for the Communications Director.   
 
Mr. Cleworth spoke against any City Commission or Council having designated funds in the 
City budget.   
 
Mayor Matherly spoke to the history of FDC funding per former Mayor John Eberhart.  He 
stated that when he came into office, the account which held FDC funds at a zero balance.  He 
stated there was nothing in writing to show how much the FDC was allocated in 2017.  He stated 
there is much less money in that account for 2017, and he has not allocated a certain dollar 
amount to the FDC.   
 
Ms. Rogers stated that Mayor Eberhart told the members that if they needed a banner, flyers or 
some materials, they would discuss it at a meeting then request the funds from the Mayor.   
 
Mr. Norum stated the FDC was given a budget of $2,000 but that they only spent $500.   
 
Mr. Cleworth stated that the current language in the DAP indicates a budgetary expectation, and 
he spoke against the statement.   
 
Ms. Rogers, seconded by Ms. Therrien, moved to POSTPONE Resolution No. 4768 to the 
Regular Meeting of February 27, 2017. 
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO POSTPONE RESOLUTION NO. 
4768 TO THE REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 27, 2017, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

YEAS:  Therrien, Rogers, Pruhs, Norum, Huntington, Cleworth 
NAYS: None 
Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION CARRIED. 

 
c) Ordinance No. 6038 – An Ordinance Amending Fairbanks General Code Chapter 82 and 

Adopting Revised Wastewater Treatment Regulations.  Introduced by Mayor Matherly.  
SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING.   

 
Ms. Therrien, seconded by Mr. Norum, moved to ADOPT Ordinance No. 6038. 
 
Mayor Matherly called for Public Testimony and, hearing none, declared Public Testimony 
closed. 
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 
6038 AS FOLLOWS: 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 14 of 126



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 23, 2017 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 12 of 16 

YEAS:  Huntington, Norum, Therrien, Pruhs, Cleworth, Rogers 
NAYS: None 
Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION CARRIED and 
Ordinance No. 6038 ADOPTED. 

 
d) Ordinance No. 6039 – An Ordinance Amending Fairbanks General Code Chapter 70-623 

to Remove Right-of-Way Permit Fee Amounts and Reference the City Fee Schedule.  
Introduced by Mayor Matherly.  SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING.   

 
Mr. Pruhs, seconded by Mr. Norum, moved to ADOPT Ordinance No. 6039.   
 
Mayor Matherly called for Public Testimony and, hearing none, declared Public Testimony 
closed. 
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 
6039 AS FOLLOWS: 
 

YEAS:  Cleworth, Pruhs, Rogers, Huntington, Norum, Therrien 
NAYS: None 
Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION CARRIED and 
Ordinance No. 6039 ADOPTED. 

 
e) Ordinance No. 6040, as Amended – An Ordinance to Amend Fairbanks General Code 

Section 2-120, Rules of Procedure.  Introduced by Mayor Matherly.  SECOND 
READING AND PUBLIC HEARING. 

 
Ms. Therrien, seconded by Mr. Pruhs, moved to ADOPT Ordinance No. 6040, as Amended. 
 
Frank Turney, 6th Avenue, Fairbanks – Mr. Turney asked for clarification as to what Rules of 
Procedure where being addressed in the ordinance.   
 
City Attorney Paul Ewers explained that the ordinance would add language to allow the Council 
to postpone an item to a date other than the next regular meeting.  
 
Hearing no more requests for public comment, Mayor Matherly declared Public Testimony 
closed. 
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 
6040, AS AMENDED, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

YEAS:  Pruhs, Therrien, Huntington, Cleworth, Norum, Rogers 
NAYS: None 
Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION CARRIED and 
Ordinance No. 6040, as Amended, ADOPTED. 

 
  

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 15 of 126



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 23, 2017 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 13 of 16 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
a) Resolution No. 4778 – A Resolution Authorizing Matching Funds and Execution of the 

Maintenance Agreement for the FMATS Sign Replacement Stage III Project.  Introduced 
by Mayor Matherly.   

  
  PASSED and APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 
b) Resolution No. 4779 – A Resolution Authorizing the City of Fairbanks to Apply for 

Funds from the US Department of Homeland Security for the FFY2016 Staffing for 
Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) Grant Program.  Introduced by Mayor 
Matherly.  

 
Ms. Therrien, seconded by Mr. Norum, moved to APPROVE Resolution No. 4779.   
 
Mr. Cleworth spoke against the SAFER grant because it ties the City’s hands.  He stated the last 
time the City took the grant they were faced with laying employees off at the end of the program.  
Mr. Cleworth stated there are items that may cost the City a lot of money in 2017, including 
labor unions and the contamination issue.  He asked Chief Financial Officer Carmen Randle to 
speak to State revenue sharing.  
 
Ms. Randle stated she received the revenue sharing numbers earlier in the day and it is going to 
be a tough budget year.  She stated that the City’s portion for 2017 will be $515,405, which is 
over $200,000 less than what was expected.   
 
Mr. Cleworth asked Ms. Randle about snow removal and whether the 2017 budget has been 
exceeded.  Ms. Randle stated in the first pay period of 2017, Public Works spent over $180,000 
on regular, full-time employees and $250,000 for temporary hires.  She stated that Public Works 
has spent 37% of its 2017 temporary labor budget.  Mr. Cleworth stated the City does not have 
the luxury to hire new people when it cannot take care of existing employees.  He stated he could 
not support Resolution No. 4779.   
 
Mr. Pruhs commended Mr. Cleworth for his well-thought out fiscal presentation and expressed 
agreement with Mr. Cleworth.   
 
Mr. Norum spoke against Mr. Cleworth’s assessment and stated that the City could not afford to 
not apply for the SAFER grant.  He spoke of a time when fifty percent of City staff had to be laid 
off.  He stated that to not accept money given to the community is derelict.   
 
Ms. Therrien asked why the numbers presented in the agenda packet were so different from the 
numbers provided at the Finance Committee meeting.  
 
Fire Chief Jim Styers stated he made an error on the previous fiscal note and that he caught the 
mistake and corrected it prior to the Council meeting.  He explained the previous number was 
based on a 40-hour work week and it should have been based on a 56-hour work week.   
 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 16 of 126



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 23, 2017 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 14 of 16 

Ms. Huntington stated there was a good discussion at the Finance Committee meeting and 
expressed agreement with Mr. Cleworth.  She stated the Fire Department is in good standing and 
that the Council does not need to fix something that is not broken.   
 
Ms. Rogers stated she would not support the resolution.  
 
Ms. Therrien stated that given the updated numbers, she would not support the resolution.   
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO.  
4779 AS FOLLOWS: 
   
  YEAS:  Norum  
  NAYS: Therrien, Rogers, Pruhs, Huntington, Cleworth 
  Mayor Matherly declared the MOTION FAILED.  
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
a) Committee Reports 
 
Public Safety Commission – Ms. Huntington stated the Commission met and discussed efforts 
to recruit new officers; she shared that the department is nearly maxed out on how many new 
officers they can train at one time.  She commended the Fairbanks Police Department (FPD) for 
the services they provide to the community.  She spoke to Striker, FPD’s soon-to-be-retired K-9 
officer and discussed what the City will do to replace him.   
 
Polaris Group – Mr. Pruhs reported that the Polaris Group met earlier in the day and that Ms. 
Rogers and Mr. Meeks were in attendance.  He stated the group has received a notice of award of 
funding letter from the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to do the Brownsfield 
Assessment for up to $200,000.  Mr. Pruhs stated that the EPA reported that the Polaris 
Building would be the largest building they have ever done.  He stated the group is working with 
a firm in Anchorage that will hopefully draw up the contract.  He stated that Marc Marlow has 
not paid taxes on the building and is set for tax foreclosure on May 28, 2017.  He stated that Mr. 
Marlow owes roughly $30,000 in back taxes on the property.    
 
Explore Fairbanks Board of Directors – Mr. Norum stated he attended his first Explore 
Fairbanks meeting and that it was an energy-filled group.  He stated the group had a change of 
officers at the meeting and that they intend to come to a Council meeting with an update soon.  
Mr. Norum spoke to the booming tourist industry in the winter because of all the people 
traveling to see the northern lights.   
 
Permanent Fund Review Board (PFRB) – Ms. Therrien stated she attended her first PFRB 
meeting and shared her amazement at all the institutional knowledge of board members.   
 
COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 
a) Memorandum of Agreement for Housing/Homeless Coordinator Position 
 
  APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA.  

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 17 of 126



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 23, 2017 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 15 of 16 

 
b) Clay Street Cemetery Commission Meeting Minutes of December 7, 2016 
 
  ACCEPTED on the CONSENT AGENDA.  
 
c) Fairbanks Diversity Council Meeting Minutes of December 13, 2016 
 
  ACCEPTED on the CONSENT AGENDA.   
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Norum stated the Council has work to do to help keep City taxpayers from paying bills that 
they should not have to pay.  He expressed his aversion to executive sessions but stated that he 
understands that they are sometimes necessary.  He stated there should be fewer executive 
sessions because they are not open to the public.  He stated the City should put out more 
statements in the media relating to improper labor negotiations. 
 
Mr. Cleworth asked Chief Styers to pass along to Ernie Misewicz how much the Council 
appreciates him and all the years of service he has dedicated to the City of Fairbanks.  He asked 
who is responsible for maintaining the areas around fire hydrants inside City limits, and he asked 
the Mayor to look into it.  He spoke to the Fairbanks Fire Department’s (FFD) 2017 budget and 
to the possibility of the Building Department taking over some of the duties of the Assistant Fire 
Chief.  He stated that he would like to explore the idea, although the City may run into union 
issues if the Building Department took over the duties.  
 
Mr. Pruhs spoke highly of Ms. Aldean Kilbourn and congratulated her on becoming the Chair 
of the Clay Street Cemetery Commission.  He stated he would rather hold Work Sessions with 
the FDC on an annual basis instead of biannually.  He stated he was in Ms. Foster-Snow’s office 
when she was processing the hiring paperwork for 20 temporary Public Works employees.  He 
spoke to what a wonderful, hardworking and professional employee Ms. Foster-Snow is.   
 
Ms. Therrien requested that the Mayor schedule an Executive Session on the Aragon report.    
 
Ms. Rogers reported that she and Mr. Pruhs attended the FNSB Assembly meeting to speak 
against the ordinance proposing extended hours for the sale of alcohol.  She stated that Ms. 
Foster-Snow is a gem and shared that her work is top-notch and always professional.  Ms. 
Rogers stated it is wonderful to have such a fine-caliber person to work with leadership at the 
City.  She shared the same sentiment of City Clerk Danyielle Snider.  She asked that the pictures 
hanging in the hallway be moved back to the gallery hallway so they have a better presentation.   
 
Ms. Huntington thanked Ms. Randle for the financial update she gave the Council.  She stated 
that she does not agree with Mr. Norum, and she added that executive sessions have never been 
inappropriate and that they need to be held.  She stated she will be missing the next Finance 
Committee meeting.  Ms. Huntington spoke to the disturbance that took place at Spring Hill 
Suites and stated that two City Council members were mentioned by the culprit during the 
incident.  She cautioned the Council to be aware of their surroundings and to remain vigilant.   
 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 18 of 126



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 23, 2017 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 16 of 16 

Mayor Matherly stated he was honored to attend City Hostess Pearl Watson’s birthday party the 
week before.   
 
Mr. Norum requested information relating to the recent death of the pedestrian on Davis Road.  
Mayor Matherly stated he could not speak to the woman’s death because she was released from 
a State agency which he has no authority over.   
 
Mr. Pruhs, seconded by Ms. Huntington, moved to go into Executive Session for the purpose 
of discussing AFL-CIO Labor Negotiations. 
 

Mayor Matherly called for objection and, hearing none, so 
ORDERED. 

 
Mayor Matherly called for a five minute recess. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
a) AFL-CIO Labor Contract Negotiations 
 
The City Council met in Executive Session to discuss AFL-CIO Labor Negotiations.  Direction 
was given to staff and no action was taken.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mr. Norum, seconded by Ms. Huntington, moved to ADJOURN the meeting. 
 

Mayor Matherly called for objection and, hearing none, so 
ORDERED. 

 
Mayor Matherly declared the meeting adjourned at 11:14 p.m. 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       JIM MATHERLY, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
D. DANYIELLE SNIDER, CMC, CITY CLERK 
 
Transcribed by:  EB 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 19 of 126



City of Fairbanks Office of the City Clerk 

800 Cushman Street Fairbanks, AK 9970 l 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Mayor Jim Matherly and City Council Members 

FROM: D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk @ 
SUBJECT: Liquor License Renewals 

DATE: March 15, 2017 

(907)459-6715 
Fax (907)459-6710 

Notice has been received from the State Alcohol & Marijuana Control Office (AMCO) for the 
following liquor license renewals: 

Lie.# DBA License Type Licensee Premises 
Address 

3050 Gambardella's Pasta Bella Reetaurant/Eating Place Gambardella's II, Inc. No Premises 

3965 K & L Beverage Company Wholesale - General K & L Beverage Company, LLC 945 Elizabeth St. 

1966 Loyal Order of Moose #1392 Club Fairbanks Lodge #1392 98 1oth Avenue 

Pursuant to FGC Sec. 14-178 the Council must determine whether or not to protest liquor license 
renewals after holding a public hearing. 

Per the Council's request, the Police Department has included a call report for each location 
(attached); however, Chief Jewkes is not recommending a protest for any of the renewals. 

There are no departmental protests to the above-listed license renewals. Please contact me 
if you need any further information. 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 20 of 126



Report# Cill Time Nature Close Time 

1700012-9 01/13/201710:22 BURGLARY-BRAVO 01/13/201711:57:SE 
17000080 01/07/201719:40 PAST THEFT- BRAVO 706 SECOND AVE 01/07/2017 21:01:3~ 

16003545 11/18/2016 21:59 SUPPLEMENTAL- 706 SECOND AVE 11/19/2016 00:46:4€ 
09/02/201619:49 10-36 706 SECOND AVE 011 UTC - 09/02/2016 20:22:4€ 

08/29/201617:39 TRESPASS LETTER 706 SECOND AVE DESKNRP 08/29/201617:54:1i 
16002392 08/03/201618:'47 DISTURBANCE- 706 SECOND AVE 011 RPT 08/03/2016 19:50:0E 

05/06/2016 20:21 NUISANCE - BRAVO 706 SECOND AVE S2 NRP 05/06/2016 22:00:1( 
03/01/2016 15:51 INCAPACITATED 706 SECOND AVE CSP esp- 03/01/201615:54:1E 

Pt:ll'lo 1 nf City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 21 of 126



Yumi D. McCulloch 

Subject: 

I Ok 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 22 of 126



Report# 
16002355 

16001104 

07116/20.16 ~31 REDOI 
04/13/201612:43 FRAUD/FORGERY-

Report Generated: 03/061201711:13:46 I UserlD: 1086 

CIOHTlme 
08/01/2016 13:06:5E 

-~~ 1 nf City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 23 of 126



MEMORANDUM 

City of Fairbanks Clerk's Office D. Danyielle Snider, City Clerk 

TO: Mayor Jim Matherly and City Council Members 

FROM: D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk@ 

SUBJECT: Application for New Marijuana Cultivation Facility License 

DATE: March 1S, 2017 

Attached you will find a notification from the Alcohol & Marijuana Control Office (AMCO) of 
an application for a new marijuana cultivation facility license along with additional information 
for the following applicant: 

License#: 
License Type: 
D.B.A.: 
Licensee/ Applicant: 
Physical Location: 

11051 
Standard Marijuana Cultivation Facility 
Northlink, LLC 
N orthlink, LLC 
1550 Cushman Street, Fairbanks Alaska 

Pursuant to 3 AAC 306.060, the Council must determine whether or not to protest the marijuana 
license action after holding a public hearing. 

This application for a new license has been advertised in the Fairbanks Daily News Miner, and a 
notice of the date, time and place of the public hearing has been mailed to all property owners 
within 500 feet of the proposed marijuana establishment. 

The Building and Fire Departments recommend that this license be protested until a Certificate 
of Occupancy is issued. There are no other departmental objections to the issuance of the 
license. 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 24 of 126



Office of the City Clerk 

800 Cushman Street &>, 997 

R°KS Qff\CE 
ALCOHOL AND ®\ I U ONTROL OFFICE 

(907)459-6715 
Fax (907)459-6710 

MARIJUANA LICENSE RESPONSE FORM 

TO: 0 FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
0 BUILDING DEPARTMENT 
181 FIRE DEPARTMENT 
0 POLICE DEPARTMENT 

FROM: CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 

DATE: 02/16/2017 

RE: MARIJUANA LICENSE ACTION-NEW CULTIVATION LICENSE APPLICATION 

DATE NOTICE RECEIVED AT CLERKS OFFICE: 02/16/2017 (60 DAY DUE DATE 04/17/2017) 

DATE RESPONSE DUE: ijJ/14/201'7! for City Council Meeting of03/20/2017 

License#: 
License Type: 
D.B.A.: 
Licensee/ Applicant: 
Physical Location: 

Corp/LLC Agent: 

Northlink, LLC 
Travis Fraser 

11051 
Standard Marijuana Cultivation Facility 
Northlink, LLC 
Northlink, LLC 
1550 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, Alaska 

Address Phone 

PO Box 10974 
907-378-7437 

Fairbanks, AK 99710 

Member/Officer/Director: DOB Address 

Travis Fraser 02/23/1978 PO Box 10974 
Fairbanks, Alaska 99710 

Zarin Taylor 09/16/1980 9138 Arlon Street 
Ste. A3 PMB 723 
Fairbanks, Alaska 99709 

ADDmONAL COMMENTS: 

D NO PROTEST: 
COMMENTS 

181 PROTEST 

Date and State of Ltd Good 
Partner/Corp standin2? 

09/02/2016-Alaska Yes 

Phone Title/Shares (%) 

907-378-7437 Member/ 66.67% 

907-322-4235 Member/ 33.33% 

REASONS:Recommend protest until final inspections have been completed and issuance of 
Certificate of Occupancy has been issued by the Building Department. 

\ ~ DEPARTMENT SIGNEE: ., .;d'..u~~.rA-_ 
{ >(Signature) ' 

I 2./J...t / J? 
(Printed Name) 

NOTE: THIS COMPLETED FORM MUST BE RETURNED TO THE CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
BY THE DATE INDICATED ABOVE. YOU MAY E-MAIL ORF AX (459-6710) THE FORM. 

If YOU HA VE ANY QUESTIONS CALL OUR OFFICE AT 459-6774. THANK YOU. 
City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 25 of 126



City of Fairbanks 
800 Cushman Street Fairbanks,AK. 99701 

Office of the City Clerk 

(907)459-6715 
Fax (907)459-6710 

ALCOHOL AND MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE 

MARIJUANA LICENSE RESPONSE FORM 

TO: 0 FINANCE DEPARTMENT DATE: 02/16/2017 
£BUILDING DEPARTMENT 
~ D FIRE DEPARTMENT 
0 POLICE DEPARTMENT 

FROM: CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 

RE: MARIJUANA LICENSE ACTION - NEW CULTIVATION LICENSE APPLICATION 

DATE NOTICE RECEIVED AT CLERKS OFFICE: 02/16/2017 (60DAY DUEDATE04/17/2017} 

DATE RESPONSE DUE: !OJ/14/201] for City Council Meeting of 03/20/2017 

License#: 
License Type: 
D.B.A.: 
Licensee/ Applicant: 
Physical Location: 

Corp/LLC Agent: 

Northlink, LLC 
Travis Fraser 

11051 
Standard Marijuana Cultivation Facility 
Northlink, LLC 
Northlink, LLC 
1550 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, Alaska 

Address Phone 

PO Box 10974 
907-378-7437 

Fairbanks, AK. 99710 

Member/Officer/Director: DOB Address 

Travis Fraser 02/23/1978 PO Box 10974 
Fairbanks, Alaska 99710 

Zarin Taylor 09/16/1980 9138 Arion Street 
Ste. A3 PMB 723 
Fairbanks, Alaska 99709 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 

D NO PROTEST: 
COMMENTS 

~ PROTEST 
REASONS: ?< "11.77 L

/5 /.f.5.?<E..L) 

DEPARTMENT SIGNEE: ~ 
~re) 

Date and State of Ltd Good 
Partner/Corp standing? 

09/02/2016 - Alaska Yes 

Phone Title/Shares (%) 

907-378-7437 Member/ 66.67% 

907-322-4235 Member / 33.33% 

I f}t~.5 ~ b~6)a;::J23N' 
(Printed Name) 

NOTE: THIS COMPLETED FORM MUST BE RETURNED TO THE CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
BY THE DATE INDICATED ABOVE. YOU MAY E-MAIL OR FAX (4S9-6710)THE FORM. 

If YOU HA VE ANY QUESTIONS CALL OUR OFFICE AT 4S9-6774. THANK YOU. City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 26 of 126



TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

FAIRBANKS NORTH STAR BOROUGH DepartmentofCommunityPlanning 
907 Terminal Street 1.c P.O. Box 71267 1.c Fairbanks, Alaska 99707-1267 

MEMORANDUM 

City of Fairbanks Council 

D. Christine Nelson, AICP \) ~ 
Community Planning Director 

March 3, 2017 

(907) 459-1260 1.c FAX (907) 459-1255 

SUBJECT: Northlink, LLC - Standard Cultivation Facility License #11051 

A "marijuana cultivation facility, indoor large" is a listed conditional use in the General Commercial 
(GC) zoning district pursuant to FNSBC 18.64.020.B.9. The applicant was issued a conditional 
use permit # CU2016-009 to use 4,040 square feet of an existing two-story building for such a 
facility. 

The proposed marijuana establishment is not located within any known sensitive use buffers 
listed in FNSBC 18.96.240.A.3. However, three zone lots containing sensitive uses with 100-foot 
buffers are within 500-feet of the facility: Friendship Baptist Church is located approximately 369-
feet to the northeast; Christ the Answer Church is located approximately 483-feet to the 
southeast; and Little Thinkers Home Care (a State-licensed day care facility) is located 
approximately 154-feet to the west. Please see the attached map identifying approximate 
distances. 

FNSBC 18.96.240.A.3 addresses buffer distances for commercial marijuana establishments. 
More specifically, FNSBC 18.96.240.A.3.c establishes the distance of 100 feet from "youth 
centers, group homes serving persons ages 18 and under, public swimming pools, state licensed 
day care facilities, arcades, state licensed substance use treatment provider or facility providing 
substance abuse use treatment, church buildings and residential zones (RE, RR, SF, TF, MF, 
MFO)." 

Buffer distances are measured from the lot line of the lot containing the sensitive use or zone to 
the commercial marijuana establishment (building) in accordance with FNSBC 18.96.240.A.3.d. 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 27 of 126



Sensitive Uses within 500 feet from 1550 S. Cushman St. 
(Source: FNSB GIS) 

Legend 

- CU2016_009 c::J Churches 

t:J 500 ft Buffer Day Care Sites 

N 

A 
0 125 250 500 Feet 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 28 of 126



AL
LEY

15TH AVE

LAC
EY

 ST
LAC

EY
 ST

AL
LEYAL
LEY

ALLEY

STACIA ST

STACIA ST

AL
LEYAL
LEY

NO
BLE

 ST
NO

BLE
 ST

16TH AVE

18TH AVE

MARY ANN ST

16TH AVE

18TH AVE

GATEWAY 

RICKERT 

RICKERT 

RICKERT 

GATEWAY GATEWAY 

RICKERT 

(18)

(23)
(6)

(4)

(8)

(7)

3N

GATEWAY GATEWAY 

23

5

5

6N

6S

1

1

9

9

16

16A

20B

3A

3B

12

8A

11A
11B

24

17

14

15

21

22

8

1

11

6

7B

10E

3S

5
8

8

12

2

13
14

3

4

5A

15

1B

20A

2B

5

1

17
18

12

9

9

19

18

12A

19

6

8E

15

13

4B

23

13

13

4
5

11A

12

9A

13

2

20A

5B

11B

8A

9

7
8

10

5

6

15

16

10B

6

2B

19B

3

3A

3

12

1A

13

12

5

10 11

12 14

15
17

15

6

6

13

14

9B9C

19

22

10
20

2

6

7B

9

4

5

6
18

20

21

18

16

18

3

1

5

11

12

13

14

13AE

18

3A

3

4W

11

16TH AVE

TU
RN

ER
 ST

MARY ANN ST

16TH AVE

ALLEY

15TH AVE

17TH AVE

15TH AVE

AL
LEY

15TH AVE

AL
LEY

NO
BLE

 ST

LAC
EY

 ST

EIE
LSO

N S
T

RICKERT (5)

RICKERT 

RICKERT 

RICKERT 
RICKERT 

RICKERT 
RICKERT 

(4)

(21)

(19)

(22)

(17)

(3)

(7)
(10)

(27)

(5)

(6)(2)

1521 CUSHMAN
CONDOMINIUMS

GATEWAY 

10A10B

13

13

16B

17

2A

2A

4

6

8B8C

1-B

16

17

23

24

4

10

11

10B

8A

5

7A

13AW

7

7A

16

1

22

21

11A
2

1-A

2

15

15

2

19C

3

4

8B

5

2B

2B

2A

2A

6

6

16

16

17

14

14

20

19

16

14
15

2

5

6

1

10

12

14
15

3
4

6A

6B

18

13

11

12

11B

21

7

17

6

11A11B

4A

8

5

9

7

3B
4

4E

19A

7

10

11

7

8

9A

1 18

19

6

7

14

2E

9

18

4A

4B

8

17

7

5

12

9

7A

17

19

20
22

19

11

3 4E

10 8

9

18

19

9

17

20B

4N

4S

7

10W

16

8 82-125

83-185

85-253

86-188

1A

7

ALLEY

MA
RY

 AN
N S

T

15TH AVE

RIC
KE

RT
 ST

STACIA ST

96.332

96.332

96.332

96.332

CUSHMAN ST

CUSHMAN ST

2003-82

73-3

5E5W

7

7

10

10

2011-116

9AW 9AE

GC

MF

MFO

LI

LC

TF

MFO

MFO

OR

MFO

MF

MFO

GC/CZ

MFO GCLI

AL
LE

Y

STACIA ST
LA

CE
Y S

T

NO
BL

E S
T

S CUSHMAN ST

MARY ANN ST

SIXTEENTH AVE

SEVENTEENTH AVE

FIFTEENTH AVE

TU
RN

ER
 ST

AL
LE

Y

ALLEY
AL

LE
Y

SIXTEENTH AVE

AL
LE

Y

ALLEY

Property Information for PAN#: 0088374
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: RICKERT, BLOCK: 05, LOT: 08E&
OWNER: Tlz Property Llc
SITUS ADDRESS: 1550 Cushman St
ZONING: GC (100%)
COMMUNITY PLANNING PERMITS:
Conditional Use: 20160009
Variance: 19870011
Zoning: 17472

1 = 2500


Fairbanks North Star Borough
Generic Report

PAN# 0088374
Printed on: 03/02/2017

The Fairbanks North Star Borough does not warrant the accuracy of maps or data provided, nor their suitability for any particular application. There may be errors in the data.

0 250 500125 Feet

Proximity and Zoning Map
NORTHLINK, LLC

Marijuana License - New - #11051
Standard Cultivation Facility

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 29 of 126



FAIRBANKS NORTH STAR BOROUGH DepartmentofCommunityPlanning 

809 Citizens Way -tt P.O. Box 71267-tl Fairbanks, Alaska 99707-1267 

April 7, 2016 

Travis Fraser 
PO Box 10974 
Fairbanks, AK 99710 

RE: CU2016-009 

Dear Mr. Fraser: 

(907) 459-1260 -tt FAX (907) 459-1255 

At its regular meeting of April 5, 2016, the Planning Commission of the Fairbanks North Star Borough 
considered your request for conditional use approval of a commercial indoor large marijuana 
cultivation facility in the General Commercial (GC) zone on E1/2, Lot 8, Block 5, Rickert Subdivision 
(located at 1550 South Cushman Street, on the northwest corner of South Cushman Street and 
Sixteenth Avenue). 

The Commission voted seven (7) in favor, two (2) opposed, to approve your request. 

Please read the attached conditions carefully as they must be adhered to for this approval to be valid. 
Please sign and return the enclosed agreement within fifteen ( 15) days from the date of the decision 
of the administrative body. 

This decision may be appealed within fifteen ( 15) days from the date of the decision to the Fairbanks 
North Star Borough Board of Adjustments. 

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please feel free to contact the Department of 
Community Planning, Division of Planning and Zoning, 809 Pioneer Road, or call 459-1260. 

Sincerely, 

D. Christine Nelson, AICP 
Director of Community Planning 

DCN/th 

CC: Lenora Niesen 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 30 of 126



FAIRBANKS NORTH STAR BOROUGH Department of Community Planning 

809 Citizens Way * P.O. Box 71267* Fairbanks, Alaska 99707-1267 

CONDITIONAL USE: 

PROPERTY OWNER: 

APPLICANT: 

AGREEMENT TO CONDITIONS 

CU2016-009 

Lenora Niesen 
PO Box 8485 
Nikiski, AK 99635 

Travis Fraser 
PO Box 10974 
Fairbanks, AK 99710 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY: 

E 1/2, Lot 8, Block 5, Rickert Subdivision 

(907) 459-1260 * FAX (907) 459-1255 

DATE APPROVED BY THE FAIRBANKS NORTH STAR BOROUGH PLANNING COMMISSION: 

April 5, 2016 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

1. The Applicant or holder of this conditional use permit shall comply with all applicable laws, 
including city, borough, and state laws. Applicable permits and approvals may include but are 
not limited to: 

a. As required by the Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development 
(Alcohol and Marijuana Control Office), the Applicant or holder of this conditional use 
permit shall ensure the site meets all licensing requirements for a commercial marijuana 
cultivation facility. 

b. The Applicant or holder of this conditional use permit shall apply for formal plan review by 
the City of Fairbanks Building Department and Fire Department and shall meet all 
applicable code requirements and standards. 

c. The Applicant or holder of this conditional use permit shall ensure that compressed and 
flammable gases are stored as required by the City of Fairbanks Fire Department. 

2. The Applicant or holder of this conditional use permit shall comply with all the security, public 
health, and safety requirements of the State of Alaska for a marijuana cultivation facility. 

3. No outdoor storage of marijuana, marijuana products, or hazardous substances shall be 
allowed pursuant to FNSBC 18.50.300. All marijuana, marijuana products, and hazardous 
substances shall be store-ctin-side'\ecure facilities. 

4. Indoor cultivation, drying, and processing building shall be equipped with appropriately sized 
odor filtration systems to mitigate odor from cultivation operations. 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 31 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 32 of 126



Department of Commerce, Community, & Economic Development

Alcohol & Marijuana Control Office
License #11051

Initiating License Application
9/15/2016 3:47:57 PM

Licensee #1

Licensee Type:  Entity

Alaska Entity Number:  10041092

Alaska Entity Name:  Northlink, LLC

Phone Number:  907-378-7437

Email Address:  travisfraser00@yahoo.com

Mailing Address:  Po box 10974
Fairbanks, AK 99701
UNITED STATES

Affiliate #1

Licensee Type:  Individual

Name:  Zarin Taylor

SSN:  

Date of Birth:  09/16/1980

Phone Number:  907-322-4235

Email Address:  zarintaylor@me.com

Mailing Address:  9138 arlon st STE. A3 pmb723
Anchorage, AK 99507
UNITED STATES

Affiliate #2

Licensee Type:  Individual

Name:  Travis Fraser

SSN:  

Date of Birth:  02/23/1978

Phone Number:  907-378-7437

Email Address:  travisfraser00@yahoo.com

Mailing Address:  Po box 10974
Fairbanks, AK 99701
UNITED STATES

License Number:  11051

License Status:  New

License Type:  Standard Marijuana Cultivation Facility

Doing Business As:  NORTHLINK, LLC

Business License Number:  1041821

Designated Licensee:  Travis Fraser

Email Address:  travisfraser00@yahoo.com

Local Government:  Fairbanks (City of)

Community Council:  

Latitude, Longitude:  64.833300, -147.716990

Physical Address:  1550 cushman
Fairbanks, AK 99701
UNITED STATES

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 33 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 34 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 35 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 36 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 37 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 38 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 39 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 40 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 41 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 42 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 43 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 44 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 45 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 46 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 47 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 48 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 49 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 50 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 51 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 52 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 53 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 54 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 55 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 56 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 57 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 58 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 59 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 60 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 61 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 62 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 63 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 64 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 65 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 66 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 67 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 68 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 69 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 70 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 71 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 72 of 126



Alcohol & Marijuana Control Office
550 W 7th Avenue, Suite 1600

Anchorage, AK 99501
marijuana.licensing@alaska.gov

https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/amco
Phone: 907.269.0350Alaska Marijuana Control Board

Cover Sheet for Marijuana Establishment Applications

What is this form?

This cover sheet must be completed and submitted any time a document, payment, or other marijuana establishment application item is
emailed, mailed, or hand-delivered to AMCO's main office.

Items that are submitted without this page will be returned in the manner in which they were received.

Section 1 – Establishment Information

Enter information for the business seeking to be licensed, as identified on the license application.

Licensee: Northlink, LLC License Number: 11051

License Type: Standard Marijuana Cultivation Facility

Doing Business As: NORTHLINK, LLC

Physical Address: 1550 cushman

City: Fairbanks State: AK Zip Code: 99701

Designated
Licensee:

Travis Fraser

Email Address: travisfraser00@yahoo.com

Section 2 – Attached Items

List all documents, payments, and other items that are being submitted along with this page.

Attached Items:  

OFFICE USE ONLY

Received Date:   Payment Submitted Y/N:   Transaction #:  

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 73 of 126

msepelak
Typewritten Text
Affidavit of Publication

msepelak
Typewritten Text

msepelak
Typewritten Text

msepelak
Typewritten Text

msepelak
Typewritten Text



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 74 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 75 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 76 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 77 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 78 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 79 of 126



Alcohol & Marijuana Control Office
550 W 7th Avenue, Suite 1600

Anchorage, AK 99501
marijuana.licensing@alaska.gov

https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/amco
Phone: 907.269.0350Alaska Marijuana Control Board

Cover Sheet for Marijuana Establishment Applications

What is this form?

This cover sheet must be completed and submitted any time a document, payment, or other marijuana establishment application item is
emailed, mailed, or hand-delivered to AMCO's main office.

Items that are submitted without this page will be returned in the manner in which they were received.

Section 1 – Establishment Information

Enter information for the business seeking to be licensed, as identified on the license application.

Licensee: Northlink, LLC License Number: 11051

License Type: Standard Marijuana Cultivation Facility

Doing Business As: NORTHLINK, LLC

Physical Address: 1550 cushman

City: Fairbanks State: AK Zip Code: 99701

Designated
Licensee:

Travis Fraser

Email Address: travisfraser00@yahoo.com

Section 2 – Attached Items

List all documents, payments, and other items that are being submitted along with this page.

Attached Items:  

OFFICE USE ONLY

Received Date:   Payment Submitted Y/N:   Transaction #:  

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 80 of 126

msepelak
Typewritten Text
Proof of Possession for Proposed Premises

msepelak
Typewritten Text

msepelak
Typewritten Text

msepelak
Typewritten Text

msepelak
Typewritten Text



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 81 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 82 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 83 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 84 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 85 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 86 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 87 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 88 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 89 of 126



Introduced by:  Mayor Matherly 
Date:  November 7, 2016 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4768 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A CITY OF FAIRBANKS 
DIVERSITY ACTION PLAN 

 
WHEREAS, on March 10, 2014, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 5939, as 

Amended, enacting FGC Sections 2-231 through 2-235 and creating a Fairbanks Diversity 
Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Fairbanks Diversity Council began meeting in September of 2014 and 

meets regularly on the second Tuesday of each month; and  
 
WHEREAS, one of the purposes of the Fairbanks Diversity Council is to draft and 

present to the City Council a Diversity Action Plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Fairbanks Diversity Council held multiple strategic planning sessions, 

under the guidance of the Chief of Staff and, with the help of other City staff, drafted a Diversity 
Action Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, on October 11, 2016, the Fairbanks Diversity Council voted unanimously 

to adopt a City of Fairbanks Diversity Action Plan and recommends adoption of the Plan by the 
City Council. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF FAIRBANKS that the attached City of Fairbanks Diversity Action Plan is hereby 
adopted and will be made available at the City’s website, www.fairbanksalaska.us.  The Plan 
may be amended by resolution of the City Council.   
 
 PASSED and APPROVED this ____ day of _________ 2017 . 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Jim Matherly, City Mayor 

 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
APPROVED:  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ ___________________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 90 of 126



CITY OF FAIRBANKS DIVERSITY ACTION PLAN (AMENDED) 

Updated after 02/06/17 Council Work Session; changes approved by FDC on 03/14/17                  Page 1 of 7 

Goal Tasks Desired Results Responsibility By When? 
1. Internal City 
Processes. Review 
internal City processes 
such as hiring, 
promotions and 
recruiting. Provide 
guidance and training 
to senior staff on how 
to improve workforce 
diversity and 
ultimately, hire and 
promote a qualified 
and diverse workforce 
that benefits all City 
stakeholders. 

Required – Develop 5-year Diversity Action Plan 
(DAP) as directed by City Ordinance 5939.    

DAP will: 
1. Increase the capacity of the City 
to perform key primary mission, 
and 
2. Provide EEO and diversity related 
guidance to the Fairbanks City 
Council and Fairbanks North Star 
Borough Assembly,  and 
3. Create a workforce reflective of 
the community we serve. 

Mayor’s Office Complete 

 

Conduct and review City of Fairbanks employee 
EEO survey and demographics data. Suggest 
benchmark EEO and diversity goals. Continue 
increased efforts to encourage diversity in the 
applicant pool. Annually results will be reflected 
in the data collected, specifically in the areas of 
recruitment and retention. 

Thorough analysis of the City's 
current EEO and diversity 
composition and recommendations 
of EEO and diversity performance 
goals that reflect the Fairbanks 
community. 

Diversity Council 
 
Mayor’s Office 

End of the Year 
Data 
 
Ongoing 

Form a screening committee for City of Fairbanks 
jobs interviews. Screening committee will appoint 
FDC members will be invited to participate 
in all key (public safety and supervisory) City of 
Fairbanks employment interviews. 

Community stakeholders to ensure 
hiring managers are aware of and 
engaged in diversity related issues 
before hiring decision is made. 

Diversity Council 
 
Human Resources 

Ongoing 

Review  City of Fairbanks recruitment and 
promotion practices, to include application 
forms, recruiting sites, interview practices, 
applicant screening and all internal processes 
related to recruitment and promotion of City 
Staff. Prepare report and suggested changes. 

Tangible suggestions to improve 
and overcome barriers to the City's 
recruiting, hiring and promotion 
practices as they relate to a more 
diverse workforce. 

Diversity Council 
 
Human Resources 

A presentation will 
be scheduled for a 
complete overview 
 

Work with Human Resources to develop a City-
wide diversity employment plan and a training 
curriculum for awareness of the importance and 
inclusion of diverse groups in our community.  
Periodically review training given to all 
employees. 

Improve workforce diversity 
through hiring and promotion of 
qualified and diverse employees 

Diversity Council 
 
Human Resources 

Ongoing 

  

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 91 of 126



CITY OF FAIRBANKS DIVERSITY ACTION PLAN (AMENDED) 

Updated after 02/06/17 Council Work Session; changes approved by FDC on 03/14/17                  Page 2 of 7 

Goal Tasks Desired Results Responsibility By When? 
2. Financial 
Resources. Ensure 
sufficient resources 
are available to 
implement DAP 

Seek out and engage community partners who 
can provide expertise and resources 

Ensure facilities and staff 
resources are available to 
implement DAP 

Mayor’s Office  
 
FDC Members 

In progress 
 

Create a proposed budget for expenses related to 
promotions and outreach activities; funds to be 
allocated by the Fairbanks City Council to the 
Mayor’s Community Promotions budget be 
identified through grants and community fund 
raising. 

Appropriately fund FDC 
activities where in-kind and in-
house expertise is not available are 
supported as funding is made 
available. 

Mayor’s Office Ongoing 
 
2015 funds were 
approved in the 
annual City Budget 

  

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 92 of 126



CITY OF FAIRBANKS DIVERSITY ACTION PLAN (AMENDED) 

Updated after 02/06/17 Council Work Session; changes approved by FDC on 03/14/17                  Page 3 of 7 

Goal Tasks Desired Results Responsibility By When? 
3. Internal City 
Policies and 
Procedures.  City of 
Fairbanks Internal 
Policies and 
Procedures will work 
to create greater 
diversity among the 
workforce. Monitor 
changes to City 
Policies and 
Procedures that are 
relevant to achieving 
greater diversity and 
consistent with the 
DAP. 
 

Establish workgroup or committee to review 
internal City policies and procedures and identify 
barriers to achieving greater diversity and 
consistent with the DAP. 
 
Work with the Chief of Staff to review the current 
policies. 

Ensure City of Fairbanks internal 
policies and procedures are 
equitable. 
 
Chief of Staff is currently updating 
and accounting for all City Policies.  
These documents will be collected 
in a City Policy Manual. 

Policy & Procedure 
Committee 
 
Mayor’s Office 

Ongoing 
 
Committee formed 
and reviewing 
hiring procedures 
 

Review City of Fairbanks Affirmative Action 
Plan. UpdateOffer recommended changes as 
needed and integrate into internal City of 
Fairbanks operations related to recruitment, 
promotion and retention of staff 

Assess diversity progress at the 
City of Fairbanks. 

Diversity Council 
Mayor’s Office 

Summer 2016 – HR 
will present the 
approved plan to 
the FDC 

  

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 93 of 126



CITY OF FAIRBANKS DIVERSITY ACTION PLAN (AMENDED) 

Updated after 02/06/17 Council Work Session; changes approved by FDC on 03/14/17                  Page 4 of 7 

Goal Tasks Desired Results Responsibility By When? 
4. Education and 
Training. Provide 
multi-tiered and on-
going strategic and 
collaborative 
education and 
outreach to the City of 
Fairbanks leaders, staff 
and residents. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Required – Review State, Local, National 
Diversity Council Work as directed by City 
Ordinance 5939. 

Educate FDC on ways other 
communities have implemented 
DAPs, to include efforts toward 
continuous and comprehensive 
diversity education. 

Mayor’s Office Complete 

Required – Provide Reports and 
Recommendations to City Council as directed by 
City Ordinance 5939. City staff will provide initial 
training and education to FDC members on 
methods of governance and communication to 
the Fairbanks City Council. 

Ensure FDC can effectively and 
efficiently communicate 
observations and 
recommendations to the City 
Council for consideration of 
adoption. 

Edu/Outreach/Media
/Communications 
Committee 
 
Mayor’s Office 

Ongoing 

Required – Assist with Accessibility Issues as 
directed by City Ordinance 5939. Form committee 
to assess and examine common barriers to equal 
accessibility, examine public policy and practice 
issues that lead to inequities in accessibility, and 
provide recommendations to City leaders and 
staff. 

Ensure continuous improvement 
and awareness of accessibility and 
access barriers. 

Accessibility 
Committee 
 
City Engineer’s Office 
 
City Building 
Department 

Ongoing 
 
Committee 
Formed, ongoing 
meetings 

Implement current events discussions and 
calendar and declare a 'diversity topic of the 
month for FDC meetings 

Continuous and comprehensive 
education on diversity. 

Edu/Outreach/Media
/Communications 
Committee 

Ongoing 

Develop and maintain collaborative partnerships 
with other groups and jointly conduct recurring 
diversity awareness training and discussion for 
City Council members and City staff. 

Ensure staff at all levels of the 
organization understands 
principles of diversity leadership 
and are considerate of EEO 
principles, biases and 
discrimination. 

Human Resources  
 
FDC Committees 

Ongoing 

Provide periodic updates to the Fairbanks City 
Council and Borough Assembly 

Strengthen communications and 
provide and receive direction 

Diversity Council Ongoing 

  

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 94 of 126



CITY OF FAIRBANKS DIVERSITY ACTION PLAN (AMENDED) 

Updated after 02/06/17 Council Work Session; changes approved by FDC on 03/14/17                  Page 5 of 7 

Goal Tasks Desired Results Responsibility By When? 
5. Community 
Outreach. Raise the 
profile and awareness 
of diversity in the 
Fairbanks Community 
in order to foster a 
safe and trusted voice 
and venue for the 
Fairbanks community. 

Required – Plan, develop & implement Public 
Awareness Plans as directed by City Ordinance 
5939. Create a procedure on how committee will 
handle public input. 

Procedure: Verbal concerns, 
feedback or written concerns 
shared with DC members and 
direct public input/concerns 
submitted to the city clerk will be 
distributed by clerk to all DC 
members 

Policy & Procedure 
Committee 
 
City Clerk 
 
All FDC Members 

Procedure 
Complete 
 
Process Ongoing 

Required - Provide citizen forum as directed by 
City Ordinance 5939. The FDC will provide two 
public comment periods at FDC meetings. 
Increase public awareness of meetings and FDC. 

A safe and trusted voice and venue 
for the community. 

FDC Members 
 
City Clerk 

Ongoing  
 

The FDC will develop active and continuously 
monitored communications aimed at 
interconnecting different groups. Possible media 
tools to be used are: TV, radio, social media, web 
pages and email. 

Raise community awareness of the 
importance of acceptance and 
inclusion of diverse groups in our 
community 

Edu/Outreach/Media
/Communications 
Committee & City PIO 

Ongoing 

Survey public to find most effective outreach 
communication methods. 

Raise community awareness of 
diversity issues. 

Edu/Outreach/Media
/Communications 
Committee & City PIO 

Not started 

FDC will identify key community leaders and 
extend invitations to speak at FDC and Fairbanks 
City Council meetings and other community 
events on topics of interest.  

Diversity issues are shared in 
deliberate manner with 
community leaders, youth and 
stakeholders. Encourage leaders to 
spread message(s) in their 
organizations and circle of 
influence. 

Edu/Outreach/Media
/Communications 
Committee 
 
Mayor’s Office 

Ongoing 

FDC representation at local events and activities Presence at local events such as 
but not limited to:  Juneteenth, 
WEIO, Intertribal PowWow, 
Golden Days, International 
Friendship Day, AFN, MLK, Festival 
of Native Arts 
 

  

FDC Members Ongoing 

Identify and utilize FDC member liaisons with 
diverse community groups 

Increase communication and 
awareness between FDC and 
diverse community groups 

FDC Members  
Ongoing 

Periodically hold moderated Courageous 
Conversations and other public forums 
 

 
 
 
 

Gauge public concerns Diversity Council  Ongoing 

Encourage interested community members to 
apply for appointment to the FDC 

Maintain full, active membership 
on the FDC 

FDC and Mayor Ongoing 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 95 of 126



CITY OF FAIRBANKS DIVERSITY ACTION PLAN (AMENDED) 

Updated after 02/06/17 Council Work Session; changes approved by FDC on 03/14/17                  Page 6 of 7 

Goal Tasks Desired Results Responsibility By When? 
6. Diversity 
Promotion. Promote 
diversity related 
activities in the 
Fairbanks community 
in order to increase 
cross-cultural 
community 
involvement. 
 

Actively support Fairbanks Police Department's 
community oriented policing (COP) initiative by 
being present at COP events and endorsing the 
COP initiative at every opportunity. FDC will 
submit Resolution of support to the Fairbanks 
City Council. 

FDC demonstrates support and 
implementation of Community 
Oriented Policing effort. 

Diversity Council 
 
Police Chief 

Ongoing support 
 
Resolution 
approved 9/13/16 

Identify opportunities to promote FDC message 
and talking points at open venues such as City 
Council and Assembly meetings, School Board 
Meetings and Corporate Share Holder Meetings. 

FDC issues and priorities are 
shared in deliberate manner with 
community stakeholders. Promote 
diversity messages and current 
initiatives to wider, cross-cultural 
audience. 

Edu/Outreach/Media
/Communications 
Committee & City PIO 

In progress 

Develop partnerships with external agencies in 
order to motivate people of different and diverse 
backgrounds to apply for positions at the City of 
Fairbanks.  

The City of Fairbanks will reach a 
more diverse pool of prospective 
applicants who are interested in 
public service. City workforce 
diversity will be more reflective of 
the community. Monthly HR 
updates 

Mayor’s Office 
 
Human Resources 

Ongoing 

Implement or promote a Fairbanks-wide diversity 
day celebration. 

Improve public awareness of 
diversity and diversity related 
issues. 

Edu/Outreach/Media
/Communications 
Committee 

Ongoing 

Plan and host a community wide diversity forum 
event/Courageous Conversations 

Improve public awareness of 
diversity and diversity related 
issues. 

Edu/Outreach/Media
/Communications 
Committee 

Ongoing 

Recognize local work places that promote 
diversity. Recognition will be based on objective 
criteria. Recognition will come from nominations 
by other organizations and work places and will 
be reviewed by a committee of the FDC.  

Improve public awareness of 
diversity and diversity related 
issues. 

Diversity Council Not started 

Ongoing 

FDC members will be invited to participate 
in all key (public safety and supervisory) City of 
Fairbanks employment interviews. 

Increased diverse pool of 
employees and/or employees 
having greater awareness of 
diversity issues 

FDC members  
 
Human Resources 

Ongoing 

 

  

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 96 of 126



CITY OF FAIRBANKS DIVERSITY ACTION PLAN (AMENDED) 

Updated after 02/06/17 Council Work Session; changes approved by FDC on 03/14/17                  Page 7 of 7 

 

FDC Committees: 

Education & Outreach / Media & Communications Committee (Trina, Jeff, Shirley, Jo Ann, Angela, Ana, Rosalind, Travis) 

 Objectives: Build awareness of Diversity Council activities and concerns with community, employees and City Council; Develop 
communications plan and work with FDC committees to communicate key messages to all City stakeholders 

Policy & Procedure Committee (Shirley, Rita, Doug, Jo Ann, June, Kelvin, Marna) 

 Objectives: Review City-wide policies and procedures and pending legislation to ensure welcoming and inclusive language. Review City of 
Fairbanks Ordinances and Resolutions while in legislative process and provide comment and guidance regarding diversity related issues to the City 
Council and City staff. 

Accessibility Committee (Doug, Ana, Jo Ann, Jeff, Rita, Montean, Amber) 

 Objectives: Develop continuous improvement and awareness of accessibility and access barriers in the City.  

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 97 of 126



  Introduced by:  Mayor Jim Matherly 
Finance Committee Review:  March 14, 2017 

 Introduced:  March 20, 2017 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4782 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS TO ACCEPT 
FUNDS FROM THE AMLJIA BALLISTIC VEST REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM  

  
WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks has been notified by the Alaska Municipal League 

Joint Insurance Association that the City is eligible for funding for reimbursement of 
ballistic vest purchases; and 
  

WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks has a policy that all Fairbanks Police Officers 
must wear ballistic vests; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Ballistic Vest Reimbursement Program provides up to 50% of the 

retail cost for ballistic vests; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks is eligible to receive funds to supplement the 

purchase of vests. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council that the Mayor or his 

designee is authorized to execute any and all documents required for accepting funds on 
behalf of the City for this grant. 

 
PASSED and APPROVED this 20th Day of March 2017. 

 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Jim Matherly, City Mayor 
 
AYES:     
NAYS:     
ABSENT:   
APPROVED:  
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
________________________________ _______________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 
  

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 98 of 126



 

Ordinance or Resolution No: 4782

Abbreviated Title: FY17 AML BALLISTIC VEST REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM 

Department(s): POLICE DEPARTMENT

Does the adoption of this ordinance or resolution authorize:

1) additional costs beyond the current adopted budget? Yes  No X

2) additional support or maintenance costs? Yes  No X

  see below

3) additional positions beyond the current adopted budget? Yes  No X

 

   (F - Full Time, P - Part Time, T - Temporary)

Equipment Contracts Personnel Total

$8,800   $8,800

$42,000   $42,000

   $0

   $0

   $0

 $0
$50,800 $0 $0 $50,800

Equipment Contracts Personnel Total

$25,400   $25,400

$21,000 $21,000

$4,400  $4,400
$50,800 $0 $0 $50,800

Initial cp Date 3/6/2017

If yes, type of positions?

CITY OF FAIRBANKS
FISCAL NOTE

I.  REQUEST:

     If yes, what is the estimate?

     If yes, how many positions?

Alaska Municipal League

II.  FINANCIAL DETAIL:
PROJECTS:

Ballistic Vests (8 vests @ $1,100)

Tactical Vests (12 vests @ $3,500)

 

 

 

 
TOTAL

FUNDING SOURCE:

City of Fairbanks (General Fund)

 DOJ Reimbursement plan
TOTAL

The City does not anticipate additional costs associated with this project.

Reviewed by Finance Department:

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 99 of 126



  Introduced by:  Mayor Matherly 
Finance Committee Review:  March 14, 2017 

 Introduced:  March 20, 2017 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4783 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A MAINTENANCE 
AGREEMENT FOR 3RD STREET IN EXCHANGE FOR LOCAL MATCHING 

FUNDS FOR THE MINNIE STREET UPGRADE PROJECT 
  

WHEREAS, the Alaska Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (“DOT&PF”) has 
offered to pay the City’s local match contribution for the Minnie Street Upgrade Project in exchange 
for assuming maintenance responsibilities for 3rd Street from the Old Steese Highway to Hamilton 
Avenue; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City currently maintains Minnie Street, and the DOT&PF currently maintains 

3rd Street; and  
 
WHEREAS, the DOT&PF has been tasked by the legislature to contract out road 

maintenance activities with private entities and local governments where possible to save the State 
money and resources; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Minnie Street Upgrade Project is currently estimated at $14,874,600 and is 

federally funded with a City required local match contribution of $857,259; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Project will reconstruct Minnie Street from Illinois Street to the Old Steese 

Highway intersection, including replacement of the bridge over Noyes Slough; and 
 
WHEREAS, assuming maintenance responsibilities for 3rd Street is estimated to cost the 

City up to $40,000 per year; and   
 
WHEREAS, the City and DOT&PF believe this exchange is a win-win for both parties. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council that the Mayor is authorized to 

execute any and all documents required for executing a match and maintenance agreement on 
behalf of the City for 3rd Street and the Minnie Street Upgrade Project. 

 
PASSED and APPROVED this 20th Day of March 2017. 

 
  _______________________________ 
  Jim Matherly, City Mayor 
AYES:    
NAYS:    
ABSENT:  
APPROVED:  
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________  _______________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk  Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 100 of 126



 

Ordinance or Resolution No: 4783

Abbreviated Title: MAINTENACE AGREEMENT FOR 3RD ST IN EXCHANGE FOR MINNIE ST MATCH

Department(s): ENGINEERING 

Does the adoption of this ordinance or resolution authorize:

1) additional costs beyond the current adopted budget? Yes X No  

2) additional support or maintenance costs? Yes X No  

  see below

3) additional positions beyond the current adopted budget? Yes  No X

 

   (F - Full Time, P - Part Time, T - Temporary)

2017 2018 2019-2038 Total

$20,000 $40,000 $797,259 $857,259

   $0

   $0

   $0

   $0

 $0
$20,000 $40,000 $797,259 $857,259

2017 2018 2019-2038 Total

$20,000 $40,000 $797,259 $857,259

  $0

  $0
$20,000 $40,000 $797,259 $857,259

Initial cp Date 3/14/2017

 

 
TOTAL

The City anticipates increased maintenance costs associated with this project of $40,000 per year.  This cost will be 
in perpetuity.  The City will receive $857,259 in match for the Minnie Street Upgrade project from the DOT in return for 
taking over maintenance on Third St.  This match savings will cover the maintenance payments for 21.43 years.  The 
City will then be responsible for those maintenance costs after year 2038.

Reviewed by Finance Department:

General Fund increase to Public Works Annual Budget

II.  FINANCIAL DETAIL:
PROJECTS:

Third St Maintenance

 

 

 

 

 
TOTAL

FUNDING SOURCE:

If yes, type of positions?

CITY OF FAIRBANKS
FISCAL NOTE

I.  REQUEST:

     If yes, what is the estimate?

     If yes, how many positions?

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 101 of 126



O
LD
 
S
TE
E
S
E
 
H
IG
H
W
A
Y

COLLEGE ROAD

3RD STREET

S
TE
E
S
E
 
E
X
P
R
E
S
S
W
A
Y

3RD STREET

FA
RE
WE
LL

H
AM
ILTO

N

S
TE
E
S
E
 
E
X
P
R
E
S
S
W
A
Y

O
LD
 
S
TE
E
S
E
 
H
IG
H
W
AY

3RD STREET

E
A
G
LE
 
A
V
E

S
TE
E
S
E
 
E
X
P
R
E
S
S
W
A
Y

MINNIE

F
O
R
TY
 
M
IL
E
 
A
V
E
N
U
E

2ND STREET

2ND STREET

4TH STREET

April 2016

3rd STREET WIDENING
DRAFT DESIGN 

D
oc

um
en

t P
at

h:
 H

:\P
ro

je
ct

s\
Fb

ks
_N

P
\6

25
41

_3
R

D
_S

T\
6 

D
es

ig
n\

8 
G

IS
\A

cc
es

s 
C

on
tro

l M
ap

.m
xd

0 250 500125
Feet

LEGEND

                    EXISTING PROPERTY LINES

                    PROPOSED DESIGN 

FIGURE 1

.

Page 3 of 5

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 102 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 103 of 126



City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 104 of 126



9 2017 $600,000 $27,090 $13,545 $40,635 $27,090 $67,725
2 2019 $974,600 $44,003 $22,002 $66,005 $44,003 $110,008
2 2020 $1,300,000 $58,695 $29,348 $88,043 $58,695 $146,738
3 2021 $1,500,000 $67,725 $33,863 $101,588 $67,725 $169,313
7 2021 $1,000,000 $45,150 $22,575 $67,725 $45,150 $112,875
4 2022 $9,500,000 $428,925 $64,339 $493,264 $428,925 $922,189

Total $14,874,600 $671,588 $100,738 $857,259 $671,588 $1,528,847
** 50% Contingency required for Phase 2-Design, Phase 3-ROW, Phase 7-Utilities, & Phase 9-Survey/Planning.  

15% Contingency required for Phase 4-Construction.

ADOT&PF 
4.52% 

MATCH 
REQUIRED

TOTAL MATCH 
CONTRIBUTED

  
Phas

e
FFY

ESTIMATED 
PHASE 
NEEDS 

(TOTAL $)

COF     
4.52% 

MATCH 
REQUIRED

COF MATCH 
CONTIN-
GENCY 

REQUIRED**

COF      
Match 

Subtotal by 
Phase

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 105 of 126



  Introduced by:  Mayor Matherly 
Finance Committee Review:  March 14, 2017 

 Introduced:  March 20, 2017 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4784 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING MATCHING FUNDS AND 
EXECUTION OF A MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT FOR THE 

MINNIE STREET UPGRADE PROJECT 
  

WHEREAS, the Minnie Street Upgrade Project (“Project”) has been approved for 
funding by the local Metropolitan Planning Organization (“MPO”), also known as Fairbanks 
Metropolitan Area Transportation System (“FMATS”); and 
  

WHEREAS, the Project will reconstruct Minnie Street from Illinois Street to the Old 
Steese Highway intersection, including replacement of the bridge over Noyes Slough; and 

 
WHEREAS, Minnie Street is currently maintained by the City and will continue to be 

maintained by the City after construction; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Project cost is currently estimated at $14,874,600 with a City 

required match contribution of $857,259; and  
 
WHEREAS, only payment of the match for the planning study and survey phase of 

the project is required at this time; and  
 
WHEREAS, the match required for this phase of the Project is $40,635 and was 

approved as a Capital Fund expenditure in the 2017 budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council that the Mayor is 

authorized to execute any and all documents required for expending funds and accepting 
the maintenance agreement on behalf of the City for the Minnie Street Upgrade Project. 

 
PASSED and APPROVED this 20th Day of March 2017. 

 
 
  _______________________________ 
  Jim Matherly, City Mayor 
 
AYES:    
NAYS:    
ABSENT:  
APPROVED:  
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
________________________________  _______________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk  Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 106 of 126



 

Ordinance or Resolution No: 4784

Abbreviated Title: MATCHING FUNDS & MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT FOR MINNIE STREET UPGRADE

Department(s): ENGINEERING 

Does the adoption of this ordinance or resolution authorize:

1) additional costs beyond the current adopted budget? Yes X No  

2) additional support or maintenance costs? Yes X No  

  see below

3) additional positions beyond the current adopted budget? Yes  No X

 

   (F - Full Time, P - Part Time, T - Temporary)

2017 2019-2020 2021-2022 Total

$40,635 $154,048 $662,576 $857,259

   $0

   $0

   $0

   $0

 $0
$40,635 $154,048 $662,576 $857,259

2017 2019-2020 2021-2022 Total

$40,635   $40,635

 $154,048 $662,576 $816,624

  $0
$40,635 $154,048 $662,576 $857,259

Initial cp Date 3/14/2017

If yes, type of positions?

CITY OF FAIRBANKS
FISCAL NOTE

I.  REQUEST:

     If yes, what is the estimate?

     If yes, how many positions?

Capital Fund - Currently in 2017 Capital Budget

II.  FINANCIAL DETAIL:
PROJECTS:

Minnie Street Upgrade Project Match

 

 

 

 

 
TOTAL

FUNDING SOURCE:

Future commitment of Capital Funds

 
TOTAL

The City does not anticipate additional costs associated with this project as the City currently maintains Minnie 
Street.  While the 2017 match was included in the Budget, additional matching funds of $816,624 still need to be 
committed in the Capital Fund for 2019 through 2022 as follows:  2019 - $66,005,  2020 - $88,043, 2021 - $169,313, 
2022 - $493,263.

Reviewed by Finance Department:

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 107 of 126



Minnie Street Upgrade

03/13/2017

MINNIE ST

I
L

L

I
N

O

I
S

 
S

T

O

L

D

 

S

T

E

E

S

E

 

H

W

Y

M
O

N
R

O
E

 
S

T

SLATER ST

INA ST

CHENA RIVER

N
O

Y
E

S
 S

L
O

U
G

H

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 108 of 126



“Keep Alaska Moving through service and infrastructure.” 
 

1 
 
 

 
 
 

Memorandum of Agreement 
for the  

 
Local Match Contribution 

for the 
 

Minnie Street Upgrade Project  
(for the Planning and Environmental Linkage Study and Survey Work) 

 
IRIS # TBD 

Between 
 

The State of Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities (ADOT&PF) 
and 

 
The City of Fairbanks (COF) 

 
 

Local Match Contribution 
The City of Fairbanks (COF) hereby agrees to provide forty thousand six hundred thirty five dollars 
($40,635.00) to the State of Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities (ADOT&PF) to 
fulfill the COF share of the local match contribution required for the Planning and Environmental 
Linkage Study and the Survey for the Minnie Street Upgrade project.  The local contribution shall be 
lump sum payments made by the COF to ADOT&PF for each project phase prior to obligation of 
Federal funds for that phase of the project.  The funding schedule is provided below.  
 
This project is part of the Minnie Street Upgrade project currently listed in the FMATS 2017 – 2020 
TIP.  
 
The local match for this project is based on the amount of matching funds required for federal-aid 
highway funding for the estimated planning phase cost within the COF totaling $600,000.00.  The 
local match percentage is 9.03%. Based on the street functional classification of urban collector, the 
matching fund requirement will be shared equally by the COF and ADOT&PF. The match also 
includes a 50% planning contingency for a sum of $40,635.00.  The total local match contribution 
due from the COF for the planning phase of this project is $40,635.  
 
The ADOT&PF and the COF will execute an amendment to this Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) 
if changes are needed to the scope, schedule and budget. The COF will be required to provide 
additional match funds associated with an increased budget.  Upon project completion and final project 
closeout, if the final cost is less than the current estimated total cost, the local contribution will be 
recalculated and any excess local cash contribution will be refunded to the COF. 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 109 of 126



 
 

“Keep Alaska Moving through service and infrastructure.” 
 

2 
 
 

ADOT&PF hereby agrees to start this project in accordance with the following project description and 
schedule: 

 
Project Description:   
Conduct a PEL Study to ultimately define the scope and design elements of the project, including a 
right of way survey.  
 
Schedule: 
This project is scheduled for obligation of funds as follows: 

  Phase FFY 
ESTIMATED 

PHASE 
NEEDS 

(TOTAL $) 

COF     
4.52% 

MATCH 
REQUIRED 

COF MATCH 
CONTIN-
GENCY 

REQUIRED** 

COF      
Match 

Subtotal 
by Phase 

ADOT&PF 
4.52% 

MATCH 
REQUIRED 

TOTAL MATCH 
CONTRIBUTED 

9 2017 $600,000  $27,090 $13,545 $40,635 $27,090 $67,725 

Total   $600,000  $27,090 $4,064 $40,635 $27,090 $67,725 

** 
50% Contingency required for Phase 2-Design, Phase 3-ROW, Phase 7-Utilities, and Phase 9-
Planning.   

  15% Contingency required for Phase 4-Construction.       
(Note: This estimate is based on the FMATS TIP. The ADOT&PF will update these estimates prior 
to execution of the agreement if needed.) 
 
ADOT&PF may modify this funding schedule for reasons that are beyond its control, including, 
but not limited to elimination or restriction of funds at the state and federal level. The COF and the 
ADOT&PF may amend this agreement by mutual consent. 
 
 

 
________________________________________________ 
Ryan F. Anderson, P.E., Northern Region Director   Date 
Alaska Department of Transportation & Public Facilities 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________  ____________________  
Jim Matherly, Mayor       Date 
City of Fairbanks 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 110 of 126



9 2017 $600,000 $27,090 $13,545 $40,635 $27,090 $67,725
2 2019 $974,600 $44,003 $22,002 $66,005 $44,003 $110,008
2 2020 $1,300,000 $58,695 $29,348 $88,043 $58,695 $146,738
3 2021 $1,500,000 $67,725 $33,863 $101,588 $67,725 $169,313
7 2021 $1,000,000 $45,150 $22,575 $67,725 $45,150 $112,875
4 2022 $9,500,000 $428,925 $64,339 $493,264 $428,925 $922,189

Total $14,874,600 $671,588 $100,738 $857,259 $671,588 $1,528,847
** 50% Contingency required for Phase 2-Design, Phase 3-ROW, Phase 7-Utilities, & Phase 9-Survey/Planning.  

15% Contingency required for Phase 4-Construction.

ADOT&PF 
4.52% 

MATCH 
REQUIRED

TOTAL MATCH 
CONTRIBUTED

  
Phas

e
FFY

ESTIMATED 
PHASE 
NEEDS 

(TOTAL $)

COF     
4.52% 

MATCH 
REQUIRED

COF MATCH 
CONTIN-
GENCY 

REQUIRED**

COF      
Match 

Subtotal by 
Phase

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 111 of 126



  Introduced by:  Council Member Therrien 
 Introduced:  March 20, 2017 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4785 
 

A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF HB 127, AN ACT RELATING TO 
PERMANENT FUND DIVIDENDS FOR AN INDIVIDUAL WHOSE 

CONVICTION HAS BEEN VACATED, REVERSED, OR DISMISSED  
  

WHEREAS, House Bill 127 would allow individuals who were ineligible to receive a 
permanent fund dividend under AS 43.23.005(d) to become eligible for such permanent 
fund dividend if the individual’s conviction is vacated or reversed and the charges on which 
the conviction was based are later dismissed or the individual is retried and found not 
guilty; and 

 
WHEREAS, such individuals, as residents of Alaska, would have otherwise been 

eligible to receive a permanent fund dividend but for the criminal conviction; and 
 
WHEREAS, such individuals often will have been incarcerated for a substantial 

period of time, and payment of past permanent fund dividends will aid them in successfully 
transitioning to civilian life; and 

 
WHEREAS, HB 127 is based on the concept of fundamental fairness toward such 

individuals. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council that the City Council 

supports passage of HB 127.   
 
PASSED and APPROVED this 20th Day of March 2017. 

 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Jim Matherly, City Mayor 
 
AYES:     
NAYS:     
ABSENT:   
APPROVED:  
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
________________________________ _______________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 112 of 126



HOUSE BILL NO. 127 

IN THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA 

THIRTIETH LEGISLATURE - FIRST SESSION 

BY REPRESENTATIVES KAWASAKI, Tuck, Kreiss-Tomkins, LeDoux 

Introduced: 2/15/17 
Referred: State Affairs, Finance 

A BILL 

FOR AN ACT ENTITLED 

30-LS0480\A 

1 "An Act relating to a permanent fund dividend for an individual whose conviction has 

2 been vacated, reversed, or dismissed; and relating to the calculation of the value of the 

permanent fund dividend by including payment to individuals eligible for a permanent 

a 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 113 of 126



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

30-LS0480\A 

individual apply for the permanent fund not later 1 the 

dismissal or not guilty finding under (i) of this section. 

* Sec. 2. AS 43.23.025(a) is amended to read: 

(a) By October 1 of each year, the commissioner shall determine the value of 

each permanent fund dividend for that year by 

(1) determining the total amount available for dividend payments, 

which equals 

(A) the amount of income of the Alaska permanent fund 

transferred to the dividend fund under AS 37.13.145(b) during the current year; 

(B) plus the unexpended and unobligated balances of prior 

fiscal year appropriations that lapse into the dividend fund under 

AS 43.23.045(d); 

(C) less the amount necessary to pay prior year dividends from 

the dividend fund in the current year under AS 43.23.005(h) and (i), 

43.23.021, and 43.23.055(3) and (7); 

(D) less the amount necessary to pay dividends from the 

dividend fund due to eligible applicants who, as determined by the department, 

filed for a previous year's dividend by the filing deadline but who were not 

a previous dividend 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 114 of 126



30-LS0480\A 

AS 43.23.005(i), added by sec. l and whose dismissal or not guilty finding 

occurred before the effective date of this Act, shall apply for a permanent fund dividend under 

3 AS 43.23.0050), added by sec. 1 of this Act, not later than 120 days after the effective date of 

4 this 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 115 of 126



Introduced by: Mayor Matherly 
Date:  March 20, 2017 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 6043 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND FAIRBANKS GENERAL CODE 
CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE VIII, FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

 
WHEREAS, City voters approved Proposition 3 on October 6, 2009, exempting City 

candidates for elective office from the Alaska public officials financial disclosure law; and 
 
WHEREAS, prior to ratification of Proposition 3, the City Council passed Ordinance 

No. 5788 which adopted the City’s own public officials financial disclosure requirements, 
Fairbanks General Code Sec. 2-900 through 2-905; and 

 
WHEREAS, FGC Section 2-901(b) requires that all candidates running for City elective 

office must file a candidate financial disclosure statement at the time of filing a declaration of 
candidacy; and  

 
WHEREAS, it is redundant for incumbent candidates to file a financial disclosure 

statement at the time of filing a declaration of candidacy if they filed a financial disclosure 
statement with the city clerk during the same calendar year, covering the same financial 
reporting period. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of the City of 

Fairbanks, Alaska, as follows: 
 

Section 1.  FGC Section 2-901, Report of financial and business interests is amended as 
follows [new text in underlined bold font; deleted text in strikethrough font]:  
 
 Sec. 2-901. – Report of financial and business interests. 
 

(a)  The mayor and councilmembers shall file a statement, under oath, with the city clerk 
within 30 days after appointment to office specifying their business interests and income 
sources, and shall file a similar statement of income sources and business interests with 
the city clerk not later than March 15 of each year that they hold office.  

 
(b)  A candidate for elective municipal office shall file a statement, under oath, with the 
city clerk at the time of filing a nominating petition and declaration of candidacy, 
specifying the candidate's business interest and income sources.  Incumbent candidates 
are not required to file a financial disclosure statement when declaring candidacy if 
they filed a financial disclosure statement with the city clerk during the same 
calendar year.   

 
Section 2.  That the effective date of this ordinance is the ___ day of April 2017.   

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 116 of 126



Ordinance No. 6043 
Page 2 

 
______________________________ 
Jim Matherly, City Mayor 

 
YEAS: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
ADOPTED: 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
__________________________________  ______________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk  Paul Ewers, City Attorney 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 117 of 126



.. • I/ 

City of Fairbanks From the 
Office of the City Attorney 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Mayor and Council 

FROM: Paul Ewers, City Atto~ 

SUBJECT: Approval of Workers' Compensation Settlement 
(Warren Cummings) 

DATE: March 14, 2017 

The City and the insurance companies listed below have reached a settlement in the 
Warren Cummings Workers' Compensation Claim. The parties had reached a tentative 
settlement agreement by way of mediation in the fall of 2015 but in the interim had been 
trying to resolve several issues with other third parties. The Council previously held 
three executive sessions (8/10, 9/14, and 9/21, 2015) to discuss possible settlement 
proposals and direction was given to the City's attorney. 

The final step is the Council's approval of the payment of the City's share of the 
settlement. 

Chief Cummings worked for 40+ years for the Fairbanks Fire Department, starting in 
1972. In 2011, he developed cancer and filed a workers' comp claim asserting that his 
cancer condition was caused by his work as a firefighter. Theoretically the cancer 
developed over his entire career. Therefore, the claim involved all of the City's workers' 
comp insurance carriers from 1972 through the present. The coverage dates and 
companies involved were: 

Firemans Fund Insurance Company 
Pacific Insurance Company of Alaska 
Industrial Indemnity Company 
City of Fairbanks (self-insured) 
Alaska Municipal League Joint Issuance Association 

8/1/69 - 8/1/72 
8/1/72 - 8/1/75 
5/31/74 - 5/1/77 
8/15/77 - 7/1/04 
7/1/04-present 

The full settlement is $240,000, plus $43,000 in attorney's fees. Each party's share is as 
follows: 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 118 of 126



.. . . 
Memo to Mayor and Council 
March 14, 2017 
Page2 of2 

Fireman's Fund Insurance Company: $23,000 ($20,000 plus $3,000 attorney's fees) 

Pacific Insurance Company of Alaska: $70,000 ($60,000 plus $10,000) 

Industrial Indemnity Company (AIGA): $70,000 ($60,000 plus $10,000) 

City of Fairbanks (self-insured): $50,000 ($40,000 plus $10,000) 

Alaska Municipal League Joint Insurance Association: $70,000 ($60,000 plus $10,000) 

The City had independent counsel (Zane Wilson) to represent it for the period when the 
City was self-insured. Both Mr. Wilson and I recommend that the Council approve the 
settlement payment. The City's share of the settlement was within the settlement range 
previously authorized by the Council. All factors considered, this settlement is a 
reasonable resolution of a very difficult case. 

' ~. 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 119 of 126



City of Fairbanks From the 
Office of the City Attorney 

TO: 
CC: 

FROM: 
SUBJECT: 
DATE: 

MEMORANDUM 

MayorandCouncil __ ~ 
Mike Meeks, Chief of Sta.fV" ~ 
JB Brainerd, Deputy City Attorney 
Paul Ewers, City Attorney 
Labor Negotiations - lead spokesperson 
March 13, 2017 

In December of 2015, the Council voted to transfer the lead spokesperson duties (for 
labor negotiations) from the Mayor to the City Attorney's Office. The attached memo 
was on the agenda of the December 14, 2015, meeting and was approved unanimously. I 
am writing to suggest that the Council return the leads spokesperson duties to the Mayor. 

As noted in the 12/10/15 memo, the departure of Chief of Staff Jim Williams and the 
imminent departure of Amber Courtney had left the Mayor's office shorthanded. The 
Mayor's office is now at full strength. The coming months will be very busy for me. 
The City's briefing in the PSEA appeal in the Alaska Supreme Court is due later this 
month. The Gavora, Inc. v. City federal lawsuit is set for trial starting the week of May 
22, plus, it is likely that the state case between Gavora, Inc. and the City will be 
scheduled shortly thereafter. I have spoken with the Mayor and with Chief of Staff 
Meeks, and they agree that moving the lead spokesperson duties back to the Mayor's 
office is appropriate. 

The proposed transition would have me continue as the spokesperson for the ongoing 
negotiations with the AFL-CIO Crafts Council. The Mayor's office would handle the 
IBEW negotiations that are scheduled to begin this month. Deputy City Attorney JB 
Brainerd would be assigned to assist with the IBEW negotiations. 

This memo will appear as a consent-agenda item 12(b). If there are any questions or 
concerns about the transfer, this item should be pulled from the consent agenda. If it is 
not pulled from the consent agenda, then the transfer of duties will be approved. 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 120 of 126



 
City of Fairbanks  From the 

Office of the City Attorney 
    

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Mayor and Council 
FROM: Paul Ewers, City Attorney 
CC:  JB Brainerd 
SUBJECT: Delegating a Lead Spokesperson for Labor Negotiations 
DATE: December 10, 2015 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
I am writing this memo at the request of Council Member Pruhs.  He is proposing 
that the spokesperson responsibility for labor negotiations be transferred from the 
Mayor’s Office to the City Attorney’s Office.  FGC Sec. 42-1 provides that the 
mayor has basic responsibility for labor relations unless the Council by majority 
vote selects a different spokesperson.  By way of this memo, Council Member 
Pruhs is asking the Council to approve the transfer of the labor spokesperson 
responsibility to the City Attorney’s Office.   
 
The departure of Chief of Staff Jim Williams and the imminent departure of Amber 
Courtney has left the Mayor’s Office shorthanded.  Jim Williams played a major 
role in contract negotiations.  It is likely that his replacement will need some time 
to get up to speed on the city’s various collective bargaining agreements.  Given 
this situation, Council Member Pruhs believes it makes sense to move the primary 
responsibility for labor negotiations to the City Attorney’s Office.   
 
If Council Member Pruhs’ proposal is approved by the Council, Deputy City 
Attorney JB Brainerd and I initially would work in tandem as the City’s lead 
negotiators for labor contracts.  We would work in conjunction with the Mayor’s 
Office, and I envision the new Chief of Staff becoming part of the negotiating 
team.   
 
This memo will appear as a consent-agenda item (13e).  If there are any questions 
or concerns about the transfer, this item should be pulled from the consent agenda.  
If it is not pulled from the consent agenda, then the transfer will be approved.   
 
    
 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 121 of 126



FAIRBANKS DIVERSITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

JANUARY 10, 2017 - 5:30 PM 
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

The Fairbanks Diversity Council (FDC) convened at 5:32 p.m. on the above date to conduct a 
Regular Meeting at the City Council Chambers, 800 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, Alaska, with 
Interim Chair Angela Faster-Snow presiding and with the following members in attendance: 

Members Present: 

Members Absent: 

Also Present: 

Shirley Lee, Seat B 
Montean Jackson, Seat C 
Marna Sanford, Seat I 
Jo Ann Borges, Seat K (arrived at 5:35) 

Rita Davis, Seat L 

Ana Maria Richards, Seat A ( excused) 
Vacancy, Seat D 
Travis Cole, Seat E ( excused) 
Trina Bailey, Seat F 

D. Danyielle Snider, City Clerk 
Mike Meeks, Chief of Staff 

Jeff Walters, Seat M 
Amber Taylor, Seat N 
Kelvin Lee, Seat 0 
June Rogers, City Council Member 

Vacancy, Seat G 
Rosalind Kan, Seat H ( excused) 
Douglas Toelle, Seat J (excused) 
Mayor Jim Matherly ( excused) 

Eric Jewkes, Chief of Police 

CALL TO ORDER & READING OF THE FDC MISSION STATEMENT 

Interim Chair Foster-Snow welcomed everyone and read aloud the FDC mission statement. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Ms. Lee, seconded by Mr. Lee, moved to APPROVE the Agenda. 

Interim Chair Foster-Snow called for objection to APPROVING 
the Agenda and, hearing none, so ORDERED. 

CITIZENS COMMENTS (Limited to 3 Minutes) 

Eric Jewkes, Fairbanks Chief of Police - Chief Jewkes gave an update on staffing levels and 
hiring efforts at the Fairbanks Police Department (FPD). He stated that FPD is still dedicated to 
community policing efforts and to diversity, but that the main focus at this time is on hiring. He 
stated that Fairbanks had seven homicides in 2016 which is greater per capita than the homicide 
rate in Anchorage for 2016. Chief Jewkes stated that the cold case detective is still working on 
cases and is making progress. 

Ms. Rogers asked Chief Jewkes to speak to the Borough ordinance regarding alcohol sales. 
Chief Jewkes stated that the Borough will consider an ordinance on Thursday, January 19 that 
would extend the hours of package stores from midnight to 2 a.m. that would allow bars to stay 
open till 3:30 a.m. on New Year's Day, and would allow bars to begin serving alcohol an hour 
earlier on Sundays to accommodate football fans. He spoke against the ordinance. 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 122 of 126



Chief Jewkes and members discussed the diversity among FPO applicants and low-staffing 
levels at FPO. Mr. Walters encouraged FDC members to participate in FPD oral boards. 

Ms. Lee asked if the Borough consulted with FPO before introducing the ordinance. Chief 
Jewkes replied that they did not. He stated that the City could adopt its own rules for hours of 
alcohol service. Chief Jewkes and members discussed DUI enforcement and arrests in the City. 

Frank Tumey, 329 6th Avenue, Fairbanks - Mr. Tumey stated that he feels like the FDC is not 
getting anywhere by bringing up the video that Glen Anderson posted to social media; he stated 
that there are other important issues to tum attention to. He spoke to the actions of Supreme 
Court Justice Sonia Sotomayor in regard to jury nullification. He spoke to the discrimination of 
minorities during jury selection and expressed hope that an FDC member would look into it. 

Marilyn Russell 221 Well Street. Fairbanks - Ms. Russell asked whether the FDC can come out 
with a statement of support for or opposition to an issue. She spoke to the timeliness of a 
statement with the approach of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr (MLK) Day. 

Clerk Snider explained how the FDC may make recommendations to the City Council. 

Jo Ann Borges, 1130 Vicki Lane, North Pole - Ms. Borges stated that she is speaking as a 
community member. She apologized for being late to the meeting. She stated that the ordinance 
to extend hours of alcohol service is all about benefiting tourism. She stated that while it may be 
an inconvenience, she believes it will have a positive economic impact on the community. 

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 

a) Regular Meeting Minutes of December 13, 2016 

Ms. Lee, seconded by Mr. Walters, moved to APPROVE the Regular Meeting Minutes of 
December 13, 2016. 

Interim Chair Foster-Snow called for objection to APPROVING 
the Minutes and, hearing none, so ORDERED. 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a) Work Sessions with the City Council-First Session Scheduled for February 6 at 6 pm 

Members discussed the focus and line-up for the work session with the City Council. They 
spoke to the history and progress of the FDC. Members agreed that the report could include a 
summary of FDC activities and accomplishments, the Diversity Action Plan (DAP), and City 
Council expectations of the FDC. Ms. Rogers stated that she would recommend that the City 
Council postpone adoption of the DAP to February 6. Ms. Jackson suggested that two FDC 
members speak in representation of the FDC and that other members attend for support. Ms. 
Rogers nominated Mr. Walters to speak; Ms. Jackson nominated Ms. Lee to speak. There was 
no objection to the nominated representatives. 

Fairbanks Diversity Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 10, 2017 
Page 2 of 5 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 123 of 126



Interim Chair Foster-Snow read aloud a portion of Fairbanks General Code (FGC) Sec. 2-234 
outlining the duties/rules of the FDC. Ms. Jackson requested that Clerk Snider email that Code 
section to FDC members. 

NEW BUSINESS 

a) FDC Policy on Member Absences 

Clerk Snider distributed attendance statistics. Members discussed the rule that was set by the 
FDC in October of 2015 to allow up to three absences per year. Ms. Davis stated that the rule 
was instigated because the FDC had difficulty gaining a quorum; she stated that the rule was 
specifically meant for Committee chairs. Ms. Sanford stated that she recalled seeing a rule for 
attendance in the FGC. Clerk Snider read aloud FGC Sec. 2-234(1) which stated that "Members 
are expected to attend all scheduled meetings, unless excused by the membership." A lengthy 
debate ensued regarding excused and unexcused absences and the amount of absences that 
should be allowed per year. 

Ms. Sanford, seconded by Ms. Jackson, moved to DEFINE "unexcused" as no communication 
with the Clerk prior to the meeting. 

A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO APPROVE THE MOTION TO 
DEFINE "UNEXCUSED" AS NO COMMUNICATION WITH THE CLERK PRIOR TO THE 
MEETING AS FOLLOWS: 

YEAS: Taylor, K. Lee, Sanford, Davis, Jackson, S. Lee, Walters, 
NAYS: Borges 
ABSENT: Kan, Bailey, Cole, Toelle, Richards 
Interim Chair Foster-Snow declared the MOTION CARRIED. 

Mr. Walters, seconded by Ms. Sanford, moved to CREATE A RULE that if a member reaches 
three unexcused absences in a calendar year, the member will be contacted by the Chair or Vice 
Chair. 

A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO CREATE A RULE THAT IF A 
MEMBER REACHES THREE UNEXCUSED ABSENCES IN A CALENDAR YEAR, THE 
MEMBER WILL BE CONTACTED BY THE ADMINISTRATION AS FOLLOWS: 

YEAS: Taylor, K. Lee, Sanford, Borges, Davis, Jackson, S. Lee, Walters 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT: Kan, Bailey, Cole, Toelle, Richards 
Interim Chair Foster-Snow declared the MOTION CARRIED. 

Ms. Lee, seconded by Mr. Lee, moved to CREATE A RULE that if a member misses three 
consecutive meetings and is unexcused, the member will be removed from the FDC. 

A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO CREATE A RULE THAT IF A 
MEMBER MISSES THREE CONSECUTIVE MEETINGS AND IS UNEXCUSED, THE 
MEMBER WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE FDC AS FOLLOWS: 

Fairbanks Diversity Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 10, 2017 
Page 3 of5 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 124 of 126



YEAS: Walters, S. Lee, Jackson, Davis, Borges, Sanford, K. Lee, Taylor 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT: Kan, Bailey, Cole, Toelle, Richards 
Interim Chair Foster-Snow declared the MOTION CARRIED. 

Ms. Sanford, seconded by Ms. Jackson, moved that the attendance rules approved by the FDC 
be codified or be sent by resolution to the City Council. 

Interim Chair Foster-Snow called for objection and, hearing 
none, so ORDERED. 

FDC COMMITTEE REPORTS 

a) HR Vacancy and Hiring Status Report 

Interim Chair Foster-Snow gave an update on position vacancies at the City of Fairbanks. 

FDC ME:MBERS COMMENTS 

Interim Chair Foster-Snow invited everyone to attend the Fire Station One renaming ceremony 
in honor oflate Chief Warren Cummings at 3:30 p.m., January 11, 2017. 

Ms. Davis wished everyone a Happy New Year; she stated she is looking forward to a new year. 

Ms. Jackson wished everyone a Happy New Year. She spoke to the flyers regarding MLK Day 
community events that were emailed to FDC Members. She stated that the Annual Gospel 
Celebration will be at the Corinthian Baptist Church at 6:30 p.m. on January 13, 2017. She 
announced that the Annual Youth Breakfast event will take place on the morning of January 14 
at the JP Jones Community Center. She stated that the breakfast is free to youth who are 18 or 
younger and is $10 for adults. She reminded everyone that there are lots of opportunities to 
volunteer in community. 

Ms. Borges stated that the New Year has arrived and that the FDC needs to make the best of it. 
She reminded members that everything they say and do reflects on the FDC. 

Ms. Taylor wished everyone a Happy New Year. She stated that she is fairly new to the FDC 
and has been observing during the last few months. She expressed her belief that there are other 
things that can be done besides talk about the DAP and member absences. She stated that as a 
community member, a mother and a minority, she is troubled by many things. Ms. Taylor stated 
that she looks forward to making progress and doing things in the community. 

Ms. Rogers spoke to effecting change in the community, and she spoke to the history of the 
FDC. She stated that she is glad Ms. Taylor is on the FDC. She thanked Chief Jewkes for 
attending and for being approachable and thoroughly responsive. She stated that she is always 
seeking to learn new things, and that FPD is a very complex organization. 

Ms. Lee suggested that the FDC hold a strategic planning session to prioritize work for the 
coming year. She recommended that committee assignments be reaffirmed at the next meeting. 

Fairbanks Diversity Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 10, 2017 
Page 4 of 5 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 125 of 126



Mr. Lee stated that he has enjoyed serving on the FDC for several months. He stated that he 
would like to have more order in meetings because it can be frustrating as far as time is 
concerned. He commented that the evening's discussion reenergized him to do better. He 
shared that the Project Homeless Connect event will take place on January 25 from 10 a.m. to 3 
p.m.; he asked for volunteers. 

Mr. Walters wished everyone a Happy New Year. He asked members to contact him if they 
have something to add to the list of items to present to the City Council. He stated that he will 
meet with Ms. Lee prior to the Work Session. He thanked Chief Jewkes and FPD for allowing 
FDC members to participate in job interviews. Mr. Walters spoke in support of the upcoming 
MLK events. He stated that soon he would like to discuss committees and strategic planning. 

Ms. Sanford apologized for being absent at recent meetings. She stated that she appreciated Ms. 
Taylor's comments and that she supports Ms. Lee's suggestion about a strategic plan. Ms. 
Sanford spoke in support of more order in the FDC to make meetings more efficient. She stated 
that Alaska Legal Services and the Alaska Court System will offer free legal services on January 
16 at the JP Jones Center starting at 10 am. She stated that if the FDC decided to do something 
about jury selection, a good place to start may be the District Attorney's (DA) office. 

Interim Chair Foster-Snow stated that it may be interesting to invite the DA to a meeting to 
inform members of the jury selection process. She stated that Mayor Matherly was absent 
because he is attending his grandmother's birthday event. She encouraged everyone to take part 
in the Homeless Connect event. 

MEETING DATES 

a) Next Meeting Date-February 14, 2017 

Interim Chair Foster-Snow stated that the next regular meeting falls on Valentine's Day. She 
asked members if they would like to propose a different date. No members proposed a new date 
or objected to meeting on Valentine's Day. Ms. Rogers suggested bringing Valentine's Day 
treats to the next meeting. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Ms. Davis, seconded by Ms. Sanford, moved to ADJOURN the meeting. 

Hearing no objection, Interim Chair Foster-Snow declared the 
meeting ADJOURNED at 7:31 p.m. 

Mayor Jim Matherly, Chair 

Transcribed by: DS 

Fairbanks Diversity Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT January 10, 2017 
Page 5 of 5 

City Council Agenda Packet - March 20, 2017 126 of 126


	AGENDA - March 20, 2017
	MINUTES - January 23, 2017
	SPECIAL ORDERS
	Liquor License Renewals
	Marijuana Cultivation Facility License - Northlink, LLC

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Resolution No. 4768

	NEW BUSINESS
	Resolution No. 4782
	Resolution No. 4783
	Resolution No. 4784
	Resolution No. 4785
	Ordinance No. 6043

	COMMUNICIATIONS TO COUNCIL
	Memo Approving Workers' Comp Settlement (Cummings)
	Memo Regarding Lead Spokesperson for Labor Negotiations
	Fairbanks Diversity Council Meeting Minutes - 01/10/17




